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STIPULATION RE FACTS, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND 
Ba, # 116267 DISPOSITION AND ORDER APPROVING 
I th M tt f: 
JAReK |:EI?IIr:N HAMILTON ACTUAL SU5"EN3'°N 

El PREVIOUS STIPULATION REJECTED 
Bar # 176374 

A Member of the State Bar of California 
(Respondent) 

Note: All information required by this form and any additional information which cannot be provided in the 
space provided, must be set forth in an attachment to this stipulation under specific headings, e.g., “Facts,” 
“Dismissals,” “Conclusions of Law,” “Supporting Authority,” etc. 

A. Parties’ Acknowledgments: 

(1) Respondent is a member of the State Bar of California, admitted June 5, 1995. 

(2) The parties agree to be bound by the factual stipulations contained herein even if conclusions of law or 
disposition are rejected or changed by the Supreme Court. 

(3) All investigations or proceedings Iisted by case number in the caption of this stipulation are entirely resolved by 
this stipulation and are deemed consolidated. Dismissed charge(s)/count(s) are listed under "Dismissals.” The 
stipulation consists of 17 pages, not including the order. 

(4) A statement of acts or omissions acknowledged by Respondent as cause or causes for discipline is included 
under “Facts.” » 
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(5) Conclusions of law, drawn from and specifically referring to the facts are also included under "Conclusions of 
Law.” 

(6) The parties must include supporting authority for the recommended level of discipline under the heading 
“Supporting Authority.” 

(7) No more than 30 days prior to the filing of this stipulation, Respondent has been advised in writing of any 
pending investigation/proceeding not resolved by this stipulation, except for criminal investigations. 

(8) Payment of Disciplinary Costs——Respondent acknowledges the provisions of Bus. & Prof. Code §§6086.10 & 
6140.7. It is recommended that (check one option only): 

Costs be awarded to the State Bar in accordance with Business and Professions Code section 6086.10, 
and are enforceable both as provided in Business and Professions Code section 6140.7 and as a money 
judgment. Unless the time for payment of discipline costs is extended pursuant to subdivision (c) of 
section 6086.10, costs assessed against a member who is actually suspended or disbarred must be paid 
as a condition of reinstatement or return to active status. 

[I Costs be awarded to the State Bar in accordance with Business and Professions Code section 6086.10 
and are enforceable both as provided in Business and Professions Code section 6140.7 and as a money 
judgment. SELECT ONE of the costs must be paid with Respondent’s membership fees for each 
of the following years: 

If Respondent fails to pay any installment as described above, or as may be modified in writing by the 
State Bar or the State Bar Court, the remaining balance will be due and payable immediately. 

E] Costs are waived in part as set forth in a separate attachment entitled "Partial Waiver of Costs.” 

l:I Cosfs are entirely waived. 

B. Aggravating Circumstances [Standards for Attorney Sanctions for Professional 
Misconduct, standards 1.2(h) & 1.5]. Facts supporting aggravating circumstances are 
required. 

(1) El Prior record of discipline: 

(a) El State Bar Court case # of prior case: 

(b) I:I Date prior discipline effective: 

(c) I:I Rules of Professional Conduct/ State Bar Act violations: 

(d) [I Degree of prior discipline: 

(e) I:] If Respondent has two or more incidents of prior discipline, use space provided below. 

(2) El lntentionallBad FaithlDishonesty: Respondent's misconduct was dishonest, intentional, or surrounded 
by, or followed by bad faith. 

(3) El Misrepresentation: Respondent’s misconduct was surrounded by, or followed by, misrepresentation. 

(4) I:I Concealment: Respondent's misconduct was surrounded by, or followed by, concealment. 
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(5) 

(6) 

(7) 

(8) 

(9) 

(10) 

(11) 

(12) 

(13) 

(14) 

(15) 

El 

El 

DEICIIZEIEIIZ 

El 

Overreaching: Respondent’s misconduct was surrounded by, or followed by, overreaching. 

Uncharged Violations: Respondent’s conduct involves uncharged violations of the Business and 
Professions Code, or the Rules of Professional Conduct. 

Trust Violation: Trust funds or property were involved and Respondent refused or was unable to account 
to the client or person who was the object of the misconduct for improper conduct toward said funds or 
property. 

Harm: Respondent’s misconduct harmed significantly a client, the public, or the administration ofjustice. 
See attachment at page 13. 

Indifference: Respondent demonstrated indifference toward rectification of or atonement for the 
consequences of Respondent’s misconduct. 

CandorILack of Cooperation: Respondent displayed a lack of candor and cooperation to victims of 
Respondent’s misconduct, or to the State Bar during disciplinary investigations or proceedings. 

Multiple Acts: Respondent’s current misconduct evidences multiple acts of wrongdoing. See attachment 
at page 13. 

Pattern: Respondent’s current misconduct demonstrates a pattern of misconduct. 

Restitution: Respondent failed to make restitution. 

Vulnerable Victim: The victim(s) of Responde_nt’s misconduct was/were highly vulnerable. 

No aggravating circumstances are involved. 

Additional aggravating circumstances: 

C. Mitigating Circumstances [Standards 1.2(i) & 1.6]. Facts supporting mitigating 
circumstances are required. 

(1) 

(2) 

(3) 

(4) 

(5) 

(6) 

Cl 

IZICIEID

D 

No Prior Discipline: Respondent has no prior record of discipline over many years of practice coupled 
with present misconduct which is not likely to recur. 

No Harm: Respondent did not harm the client, the public, or the administration of justice. 
Candorlcooperation: Respondent displayed spontaneous candor and cooperation with the victims of 
Respondent’s misconduct or to the State Bar during disciplinary investigations and proceedings. 

Remorse: Respondent promptly took objective steps demonstrating spontaneous remorse and recognition 
of the wrongdoing, which steps were designed to timely atone for any consequences of Respondent’s 
misconduct. 

Restitution: Respondent paid $ on in restitution to without the threat or force of 
disciplinary, civil or criminal proceedings. 

Delay: These disciplinary proceedings were excessively delayed. The delay is not attributable to 
Respondent and the delay prejudiced Respondent. 
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(7) I:I Good Faith: Respondent acted with a good faith belief that was honestly held and objectively reasonable. 

(8) I___I EmotionaIIPhysical Difficulties: At the time of the stipulated act or acts of professional misconduct, 
Respondent suffered extreme emotional difficulties or physical or mental disabilities which expert testimony 
would establish was directly responsible for the misconduct. The difficulties or disabilities were not the 
product of any illegal conduct by Respondent, such as illegal drug or substance abuse, and the difficulties 
or disabilities no longer pose a risk that Respondent will commit misconduct. 

(9) El Severe Financial Stress: At the time of the misconduct, Respondent suffered from severe financial stress 
which resulted from circumstances not reasonably foreseeable or which were beyond Respondent’s control 
and which were directly responsible for the misconduct. 

(10) Family Problems: At the time of the misconduct, Respondent suffered extreme difficulties in 
Respondent’s personal life which were other than emotional or physical in nature. 

[I] 

(11) I] Good Character: Respondent's extraordinarily good character is attested to by a wide range of references 
in the legal and general communities who are aware of the full extent of Respondent’s misconduct. 

III Rehabilitation: Considerable time has passed since the acts of professional misconduct occurred 
followed by convincing proof of subsequent rehabilitation. 

(12) 

(13) E] No mitigating circumstances are involved. 

Additional mitigating circumstances: 

No Prior Record of Discipline, see attachment at page 14. 
Extreme Emotional and Physical Difficulties, see attachment at page 14. 
Extraordinary Good Character, see attachment at page 14. 
Prefiling Stipulation, see attachment at page 14. 

D. Recommended Discipline: 
(1) >14 Actual Suspension: 

Respondent is suspended from the practice of law for two (2) years, the execution of that suspension is 
stayed, and Respondent is placed on probation for two (2) years with the following conditions. 

o Respondent must be suspended from the practice of law for the first six (6) months of the period of 
Respondent’s probation. 

(2) El Actual Suspension “And Until” Rehabilitation: 

Respondent is suspended from the practice of law for , the execution of that suspension is stayed, 
and Respondent is placed on probation for with the following conditions. 

0 Respondent must be suspended from the practice of law for a minimum of the first of 
Respondent’s probation and until Respondent provides proof to the State Bar Court of Respondent’s 
rehabilitation, fitness to practice, and present learning and ability in the general law. (Rules Proc. of 
State Bar, tit. IV, Stds. for Atty. Sanctions for Prof. Misconduct, std. 1.2(c)(1).) 

(3) I:] Actual Suspension “And Until” Restitution (Single Payee) and Rehabilitation: 

(Effective July 1, 2018) 
Actual Suspension



(Do not write above this line.) 

Respondent is suspended from the practice of law for , the execution of that suspension is stayed, 
and Respondent is placed on probation for with the following conditions. 

o Respondent must be suspended from the practice of law for a minimum of the first of 
Respondent’s probation, and Respondent will remain suspended until both of the following 
requirements are satisfied: 

a. Respondent makes restitution to in the amount of $ plus 10 percent interest per 
year from (or reimburses the Client Security Fund to the extent of any payment from the 
Fund to such payee, in accordance with Business and Professions Code section 6140.5) and 
furnishes satisfactory proof to the State Bar’s Office of Probation in Los Angeles; and 

b. Respondent provides proof to the State Bar Court of Respondent's rehabilitation, fitness to 
practice, and present learning and ability in the general law. (Rules Proc. of State Bar, 
tit. IV, Stds. for Atty. Sanctions for Prof. Misconduct, std. 1.2(c)(1).) 

(4) I] Actual Suspension “And Until” Restitution (Multiple Payees) and Rehabilitation: 

Respondent is suspended from the practice of law for , the execution of that suspension is stayed, 
and Respondent is placed on probation for with the following conditions. 

0 Respondent must be suspended from the practice of law for a minimum of the first of 
Respondent’s probation, and Respondent will remain suspended until both of the following 
requirements are satisfied: 

a. Respondent must make restitution, including the principal amount plus 10 percent interest per 
year (and furnish satisfactory proof of such restitution to the Office of Probation), to each of the 
following payees (or reimburse the Client Security Fund to the extent of any payment from the 
Fund to such payee in accordance with Business and Professions Code section 6140.5): 

Pa Amount Interest Accrues From 

b. Respondent provides proof to the State Bar Court of Respondent's rehabilitation, fitness to 
practice, and present learning and ability in the general law. (Rules Proc. of State Bar, tit. IV, 
Stds. for Atty. Sanctions for Prof. Misconduct, std. 1.2(c)(1).) 

(5) El Actual Suspension “And Until” Restitution (Single Payee) with Conditional-Std. 1.2(c)(1) 
Requirement: 

Respondent is suspended from the practice of law for , the execution of that suspension is stayed, 
and Respondent is placed on probation for with the following conditions. 

0 Respondent must be suspended from the practice of law for a minimum for the first of 
Respondent’s probation, and Respondent will remain suspended until the following requirements are 
satisfied: 
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a. Respondent makes restitution to in the amount of $ plus 10 percent interest per 
year from (or reimburses the Client Security Fund to the extent of any payment from the 
Fund to such payee, in accordance with Business and Professions Code section 6140.5) and 
furnishes satisfactory proof to the State Bar’s Office of Probation in Los Angeles; and, 

b. If Respondent remains suspended for two years or longer, Respondent must provide proof to the 
State Bar Court of Respondent’s rehabilitation, fitness to practice, and present learning and ability 
in the general law. (Rules Proc. of State Bar, tit. IV, Stds. for Atty. Sanctions for Prof. 
Misconduct, std. 1.2(c)(1).) 

(6) El Actual Suspension “And Until” Restitution (Multiple Payees) with Conditional Std. 1.2(c)(1) 
Requirement: 

Respondent is suspended from the practice of law for , the execution of that suspension is stayed, 
and Respondent is placed on probation for with the following conditions. 

o Respondent must be suspended from the practice of law for a minimum for the first of 
Respondent’s probation, and Respondent will remain suspended until the following requirements are 
satisfied: 

a. Respondent must make restitution, including the principal amount plus 10 percent interest per 
year (and furnish satisfactory proof of such restitution to the Office of Probation), to each of the 
following payees (or reimburse the Client Security Fund to the extent of any payment from the 
Fund to such payee in accordance with Business and Professions Code section 6140.5): 

Pa Amount Interest Accrues From 

b. If Respondent remains suspended for two years or longer, Respondent must provide proof to the 
State Bar Court of Respondent’s rehabilitation, fitness to practice, and present learning and ability 
in the general law. (Rules Proc. of State Bar, tit. IV, Stds. for Atty. Sanctions for Prof. 
Misconduct, std. 1.2(c)(1).) 

(7) I] Actual Suspension with Credit for Interim Suspension: 

Respondent is suspended from the practice of law for , the execution of that suspension is stayed, 
and Respondent is placed on probation for with the following conditions. 

- Respondent is suspended from the practice of law for the first of probation (with credit given 
for the period of interim suspension which commenced on ). 

E. Additional Conditions of Probation: 

(1) IX] Review Rules of Professional Conduct: Within 30 days after the effective date of the Supreme Court 
order imposing discipline in this matter, Respondent must (1) read the California Rules of Professional 
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(2) 

(3) 

(4) 

(5) 

(6) 

Conduct (Rules of Professional Conduct) and Business and Professions Code sections 6067, 6068, and 
6103 through 6126, and (2) provide a declaration, under penalty of perjury, attesting to Respondent’s 
compliance with this requirement, to the State Bar’s Office of Probation in Los Angeles (Office of Probation) 
with Respondent’s first quarterly report. 

Comply with State Bar Act, Rules of Professional Conduct, and Probation Conditions: Respondent 
must comply with the provisions of the State Bar Act, the Rules of Professional Conduct, and all conditions 
of Respondent’s probation. 

Maintain Valid Official Membership Address and Other Required Contact Information: Within 30 
days after the effective date of the Supreme Court order imposing discipline in this matter, Respondent 
must make certain that the State Bar Attorney Regulation and Consumer Resources Office (ARCR) has 
Respondent’s current office address, email address, and telephone number. If Respondent does not 
maintain an office, Respondent must provide the mailing address, email address, and telephone number to 
be used for State Bar purposes. Respondent must report, in writing, any change in the above information 
to ARCR, within ten (10) days after such change, in the manner required by that office. 

Meet and Cooperate with Office of Probation: Within 15 days after the effective date of the Supreme 
Court order imposing discipline in this matter, Respondent must schedule a meeting with Respondent’s 
assigned probation case specialist to discuss the terms and conditions of Respondent’s discipline and, 
within 30 days after the effective date of the court’s order, must participate in such meeting. Unless 
otherwise instructed by the Office of Probation, Respondent may meet with the probation case specialist in 
person or by telephone. During the probation period, Respondent must promptly meet with representatives 
of the Office of Probation as requested by it and, subject to the assertion of applicable privileges, must fully, 
promptly, and truthfully answer any inquiries by it and provide to it any other information requested by it. 

State Bar Court Retains JurisdictionlAppear Before and Cooperate with State Bar Court: During 
Respondent’s probation period, the State Bar Court retains jurisdiction over Respondent to address issues 
concerning compliance with probation conditions. During this period, Respondent must appear before the 
State Bar Court as required by the court or by the Office of Probation after written notice mailed to 
Respondent’s official membership address, as provided above. Subject to the assertion of applicable 
privileges, Respondent must fully, promptly, and truthfully answer any inquiries by the court and must 
provide any other information the court requests. 

Quarterly and Final Reports: 

a. Deadlines for Reports. Respondent must submit written quarterly reports to the Office of Probation no 
later than each January 10 (covering October 1 through December 31 of the prior year), April 10 
(covering January 1 through March 31), July 10 (covering April 1 through June 30), and October 10 
(covering July 1 through September 30) within the period of probation. If the first report would cover 
less than 30 days, that report must be submitted on the next quarter date and cover the extended 
deadline. In addition to all quarterly reports, Respondent must submit a final report no earlier than ten 
(10) days before the last day of the probation period and no later than the last day of the probation 
period. 

b. Contents of Reports. Respondent must answer, under penalty of perjury, all inquiries contained in the 
quarterly report form provided by the Office of Probation, including stating whether Respondent has 
complied with the State Bar Act and the Rules of Professional Conduct during the applicable quarter or 
period. All reports must be: (1) submitted on the form provided by the Office of Probation; (2) signed 
and dated after the completion of the period for which the report is being submitted (except for the final 
report); (3) filled out completely and signed under penalty of perjury; and (4) submitted to the Office of 
Probation on or before each report's due date. 

c. Submission of Reports. All reports must be submitted by: (1 ) fax or email to the Office of Probation; 
(2) personal delivery to the Office of Probation; (3) certified mail, return receipt requested, to the Office 
of Probation (postmarked on or before the due date); or (4) other tracked-service provider, such as 
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Federal Express or United Parcel Service, etc. (physically delivered to such provider on or before the 
due date). 

d. Proof of Compliance. Respondent is directed to maintain proof of Respondent’s compliance with the 
above requirements for each such report for a minimum of one year after either the period of probation 
or the period of Respondent’s actual suspension has ended, whichever is longer. Respondent is 
required to present such proof upon request by the State Bar, the Office of Probation, or the State Bar 
Court. 

State Bar Ethics School: Within one year after the effective date of the Supreme Court order imposing 
discipline in this matter, Respondent must submit to the Office of Probation satisfactory evidence of 
completion of the State Bar Ethics School and passage of the test given at the end of that session. This 
requirement is separate from any Minimum Continuing Legal Education (MCLE) requirement, and 
Respondent will not receive MCLE credit for attending this session. If Respondent provides satisfactory 
evidence of completion of the Ethics School after the date of this stipulation but before the effective date of 
the Supreme Court’s order in this matter, Respondent will nonetheless receive credit for such evidence 
toward Respondent’s duty to comply with this condition. 

State Bar Ethics School Not Recommended: It is not recommended that Respondent be ordered to 
attend the State Bar Ethics School because 

State Bar Client Trust Accounting School: Within one year after the effective date of the Supreme Court 
order imposing discipline in this matter, Respondent must submit to the Office of Probation satisfactory 
evidence of completion of the State Bar Client Trust Accounting School and passage of the test given at 
the end of that session. This requirement is separate from any Minimum Continuing Legal Education 
(MCLE) requirement, and Respondent will not receive MCLE credit for attending this session. If 

Respondent provides satisfactory evidence of completion of the Client Trust Accounting School after the 
date of this stipulation but before the effective date of the Supreme Court's order in this matter, Respondent 
will nonetheless receive credit for such evidence toward Respondent’s duty to comply with this condition. 

Minimum Continuing Legal Education (MCLE) Courses — California Legal Ethics [Alternative to 
State Bar Ethics School for Out-of-State Residents]: Because Respondent resides outside of 
California, within after the effective date of the Supreme Court order imposing discipline in this 
matter, Respondent must either submit to the Office of Probation satisfactory evidence of completion of the 
State Bar Ethics School and passage of the test given at the end of that session or, in the alternative, 
complete hours of California Minimum Continuing Legal Education-approved participatory activity in 
California legal ethics and provide proof of such completion to the Office of Probation. This requirement is 
separate from any MCLE requirement, and Respondent will not receive MCLE credit for this activity. If 

Respondent provides satisfactory evidence of completion of the Ethics School or the hours of legal 
education described above, completed after the date of this stipulation but before the effective date of the 
Supreme Court’s order in this matter, Respondent will nonetheless receive credit for such evidence toward 
Respondent’s duty to comply with this condition. 

Criminal Probation: Respondent must comply with all probation conditions imposed in the underlying 
criminal matter and must report such compliance under penalty of perjury in all quarterly and final reports 
submitted to the Office of Probation covering any portion of the period of the criminal probation. In each 
quarterly and final report, if Respondent has an assigned criminal probation officer, Respondent must 
provide the name and current contact information for that criminal probation officer. If the criminal 
probation was successfully completed during the period covered by a quarterly or final report, that fact 
must be reported by Respondent in such report and satisfactory evidence of such fact must be provided 
with it. If, at any time before or during the period of probation, Respondent’s criminal probation is revoked, 
Respondent is sanctioned by the criminal court, or Respondent’s status is otherwise changed due to any 
alleged violation of the criminal probation conditions by Respondent, Respondent must submit the criminal 
court records regarding any such action with Respondent’s next quarterly or final report. 
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(12) 1:] Minimum Continuing Legal Education (MCLE): Within after the effective date of the Supreme 
Court order imposing discipline in this matter, Respondent must complete hour(s) of California 
Minimum Continuing Legal Education-approved participatory activity in SELECT ONE and must 
provide proof of such completion to the Office of Probation. This requirement is separate from any MCLE 
requirement, and Respondent will not receive MCLE credit for this activity. If Respondent provides 
satisfactory evidence of completion of the hours of legal education described above, completed after the 
date of this stipulation but before the effective date of the Supreme Court's order in this matter, 
Respondent will nonetheless receive credit for such evidence toward Respondent’s duty to comply with 
this condition. 

(13) |:l Other: Respondent must also comply with the following additional conditions of probation: 

(14) Proof of Compliance with Rule 9.20 Obligations: Respondent is directed to maintain, for a minimum of 
one year after commencement of probation, proof of compliance with the Supreme Court's order that 
Respondent comply with the requirements of California Rules of Court, rule 9.20, subdivisions (a) and (c). 
Such proof must include: the names and addresses of all individuals and entities to whom Respondent 
sent notification pursuant to rule 9.20; a copy of each notification letter sent to each recipient; the original 
receipt or postal authority tracking document for each notification sent; the originals of all returned receipts 
and notifications of non-delivery; and a copy of the completed compliance affidavit filed by Respondent 
with the State Bar Court. Respondent is required to present such proof upon request by the State Bar, the 
Office of Probation, or the State Bar Court. 

(15) CI The following conditions are attached hereto and incorporated: 

El Financial Conditions D Medical Conditions 

I:| Substance Abuse Conditions 

The period of probation will commence on the effective date of the Supreme Court order imposing discipline in this 
matter. At the expiration of the probation period, if Respondent has complied with all conditions of probation, the 
period of stayed suspension will be satisfied and that suspension will be terminated. 

F. Other Requirements Negotiated by the Parties (Not Probation Conditions): 

(1) El Multistate Professional Responsibility Examination Within One Year or During Period of Actual 
Suspension: Respondent must take and pass the Multistate Professional Responsibility Examination 
administered by the National Conference of Bar Examiners within one year after the effective date of the 
Supreme Court order imposing discipline in this matter or during the period of Respondent’s actual 
suspension, whichever is longer, and to provide satisfactory proof of such passage to the State Bar’s 
Office of Probation within the same period. Failure to do so may result in suspension. (Cal. Rules of 
Court, rule 9.10(b).) If Respondent provides satisfactory evidence of the taking and passage of the above 
examination after the date of this stipulation but before the effective date of the Supreme Court’s order in 
this matter, Respondent will nonetheless receive credit for such evidence toward Respondent’s duty to 
comply with this requirement. 

(2) I:] Multistate Professional Responsibility Examination Requirement Not Recommended: It is not 
recommended that Respondent be ordered to take and pass the Multistate Professional Responsibility 
Examination because 

(3) IE California Rules of Court, Rule 9.20: Respondent must comply with the requirements of California 
Rules of Court, rule 9.20, and perform the acts specified in subdivisions (a) and (c) of that rule within 30 
and 40 days, respectively, after the effective date of the Supreme Court order imposing discipline in this 
matter. Failure to do so may result in disbarment or suspension. 
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(4) 

(5) 

(6) 

For purposes of compliance with rule 9.20(a), the operative date for identification of “clients being 
represented in pending matters” and others to be notified is the filing date of the Supreme Court order, 
not any later "effective” date of the order. (Athearn v. State Bar (1982) 32 Cal.3d 38, 45.) Further, 
Respondent is required to file a rule 9.20(c) affidavit even if Respondent has no clients to notify on the 
date the Supreme Court filed its order in this proceeding. (Powers v. State Bar (1988) 44 Cal.3d 337, 
341.) In addition to being punished as a crime or contempt, an attorney’s failure to comply with rule 9.20 
is, inter alia, cause for disbarment, suspension, revocation of any pending disciplinary probation, and 
denial of an application for reinstatement after disbarment. (Cal. Rules of Court, rule 9.20(d).) 

California Rules of Court, Rule 9.20 - Conditional Requirement: If Respondent remains suspended 
for 90 days or longer, Respondent must comply with the requirements of California Rules of Court, 
rule 9.20, and perform the acts specified in subdivisions (a) and (c) of that rule within 120 and 130 days, 
respectively, after the effective date of the Supreme Cour’: order imposing discipline in this matter. Failure 
to do so may result in disbarment or suspension. 

For purposes of compliance with rule 9.20(a), the operative date for identification of “clients being 
represented in pending matters” and others to be notified is the filing date of the Supreme Court order, 
not any later “effective” date of the order. (Athearn v. State Bar (1982) 32 Cal.3d 38, 45.) Further, 
Respondent is required to file a rule 9.20(c) affidavit even if Respondent has no clients to notify on the 
date the Supreme Court filed its order in this proceeding. (Powers v. State Bar (1988) 44 Cal.3d 337, 
341.) In addition to being punished as a crime or contempt, an attorney’s failure to comply with rule 9.20 
is, inter alia, cause for disbarment, suspension, revocation of any pending disciplinary probation, and 
denial of an application for reinstatement after disbarment. (Cal. Rules of Court, rule 9.20(d).) 

California Rules of Court, Rule 9.20, Requirement Not Recommended: It is not recommended that 
Respondent be ordered to comply with the requirements of California Rules of Court, rule 9.20, because 

Other Requirements: It is further recommended that Respondent be ordered to comply with the following 
additional requirements: 
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ATTACHMENT TO 
STIPULATION RE FACTS, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND DISPOSITION 

IN THE MATTER OF: MARK REMAN HAMILTON 
CASE NUMBER: 18-J—11755 

FACTS AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW. 
Respondent admits that the following facts are true and that he is culpable of violations of the specified 
statutes and/or Rules of Professional Conduct. 

Case No. 18-J-11755 (Discipline in Other Jurisdiction) 

PROCEDURAL BACKGROUND IN OTHER JURISDICTION: 
1. On June 5, 1995, respondent was admitted to the practice of law in the State of California. 

2. On April 4, 2017, the United States Bankruptcy Court, Central District of California, Santa Ana 
Division issued to respondent its Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law in Support of the Granting of 
the U.S. Trustee’s Motion for Order to Show Cause Why Attorney Mark R. Hamilton Should Not Be 
Referred to the Disciplinary Panel of the Central District of California in case number 8:16-bk-13472- 
ES. Respondent was found to have violated the following rules: Federal Rules of Bankruptcy 
Procedure Rule 9011(b) [Misrepresentation to the Court]; California Rules of Professional Conduct, rule 
3-210 [Advising Violation of Law], and rule 5-200 [Seeking to Mislead a Judge]. 

3. On December 5, 2017, the Disciplinary Panel of the Central District of California issued to 
respondent its Order and Memorandum Decision Imposing Two Year Minimum Suspension with 
Conditions for Reinstatement in case number 2:17-mp-00108-PC. Thereafter, the Order became final. 

4. The disciplinary proceedings in the United States Bankruptcy Court, Central District of 
California provided fundamental constitutional protection. 

FACTS FOUND IN OTHER JURISDICTION: 
5. Respondent was the attorney of record for the debtor in United States Bankruptcy Court, Central 

District of California, case number 8:16-bk-13472-ES. 

6. On August 17, 2016, respondent filed a Verification of Master Mailing List of Creditors in which 
he and debtor each certified “under penalty of perjury” that the attached creditor matrix “is complete, 
correct, and consistent with the Debtor’s schedules” and further that “I/we assume all responsibility for 
errors and omissions.” 

7. On September 28, 2016, the debtor’s landlord filed a Motion for Relief from the Automatic Stay 
to be able to complete an unlawful detainer proceeding against the debtor. The debtor’s 1and1ord’s 
motion noted that the debtor had omitted the landlord from the creditor matrix filed on August 17, 2016. 
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8. On October 11, 2016, respondent filed an amended creditor matrix adding the debtor’s landlord, 
and an opposition to the 1andlord’s Motion for Relief from the Automatic Stay. In the opposition, 
respondent submitted a declaration in which he stated under penalty of pe1jury that the landlord had 
been intentionally omitted from the matrix: 

Debtor did not intend that her landlord should have any knowledge of her 
bankruptcy, which is the reason she left his name off the creditor list. Now that 
the landlord has found out about the bankruptcy, Debtor wishes to reaffirm her 
executory contract with the landlord. 

The opposition included the debtor’s declaration made under penalty of pexjury which stated: 

For fear of economic bias, I did not intend that my landlord should have any 
knowledge of this bankruptcy, which is the reason I left his name off the creditor 
list. Now that the landlord/owner has found out about the bankruptcy, I wish to 
reaffirm her [sic] executory contract with her [sic] landlord. 

9. On October 20, 2016, a hearing on the Motion for Relief from the Automatic Stay was held 
before Judge Efithe Smith. On the record, respondent admitted that he knowingly filed the creditor 
matrix without including the landlord on the list of creditors. Respondent represented to the court that 
the failure to include the landlord on the list of creditors was his error and not the fault of the debtor. 
When asked by the court about the acknowledgement of omission by the debtor in her declaration, 
respondent responded, “I wrote that declaration for my client and it was in error.” When asked by the 
court if he had filed a false declaration without making effort to correct it, respondent replied, “I 
apologize. I throw myself on the mercy of the court.” 

10. During the October 20, 2016 hearing, respondent stated that he believed omitting the landlord 
from the creditor list would be “inconsequential pursuant to what I read on the internet.” When the 
court asked respondent to further explain what he had read on the internet, respondent stated, ‘‘I don”: 
have the sofiware to produce the forms. I purchased a [software] product designed for laypersons and it 
said not to answer the question. It was very confilsing to me but I followed what it said.” The court 
stated to respondent, “I have to say there are few times that I am completely speechless. I’m looking at 
a declaration that is very specific about an intent to leave the landlord off the list and that cannot be due 
to any software issues.” 

11. On February14, 2017, the United States Trustee filed a motion seeking an Order to Show Cause 
and an Order referring respondent to the Disciplinary Panel of the Central District of California. 
Respondent did not file a response to the motion. 

12. On March 16, 2017, a hearing on the Motion Seeking an Order to Show Cause was held. 
Respondent did not appear at the hearing. 

13. On April 4, 2017, the court issued its written Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law, granted 
the U.S. Trustee’s motion, and referred the matter to the Disciplinary Panel of the Central District of 
California. 

14. On May 8, 2017, Disciplinary Panel of the Central District of California began its disciplinary 
proceeding against respondent in case number 2:17-mp-00108-PC.
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15. On September 1, 2017, respondent filed a memorandum stating that his error in omitting the 
debtor’s landlord from the creditor’s matrix was attributable to several situations which impaired his 
judgment. Respondent stated that the debtor was his girlfriend and that he suffered from “multiple 
medical and psychological issues” which respondent did not specify. 

16. On October 2, 2017, the Disciplinary Panel held its hearing, at which respondent was present 
with counsel, along with the U.S. Trustee’s attorneys, and a witness, the attorney for the debtor’s 
landlord. Respondent’s counsel affirmed to the panel that respondent was not disputing the findings of 
facts and conclusions of law made by Judge Smith on April 4, 2017. Respondent testified to possible 
mitigating factors, including the psychological and medical conditions which he claimed impaired his 
judgement. 

17. On December 5, 2017, the Disciplinary Panel issued its Memorandum Decision concluding that 
respondent must be suspended from the practice of law in the court for two years, and thereafter he may 
apply for reinstatement. In addition, before being reinstated, respondent must present admissible 
evidence of (a) rehabilitation from the psychological and physical impairments that allegedly have 
impaired his judgment, or any treatments or medications that are sufficient to mitigate or counteract the 
effects of those impairments on his judgment, and (b) that he has completed not less than three hours of 
continuing legal education on the topic of ethics, plus not less than six hours on the topic of bankruptcy. 
The court denied the U.S. Trustee’s motion to award the debtor’s landlord attorney fees because the 
court found that the landlord would have incurred the fees spent seeking relief from the stay whether it 
had been timely notified of the bankruptcy or not. 

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW: 

18. As a matter of law, respondent’s culpability of professional misconduct determined in the 
proceeding in United States Bankruptcy Court, Central District of California warrants the imposition of 
discipline under the laws and rules binding upon respondent in the State of California at the time 
respondent committed the misconduct in the other jurisdiction, pursuant to Business and Professions 
Code section 6049.1, subdivision (a). 

AGGRAVATING CIRCUMSTANCES. 
Multiple Acts of Wrongdoing (Std. 1.5(b)): Respondent’s misconduct in the U.S. Bankruptcy 

Court, Central District of California, involves making multiple intentional misrepresentations to the 
court over a two month period of time, including the filing of a false creditor matrix and the filing of two 
false declarations. Respondent’s multiple acts of misconduct are an aggravating circumstance. 

Significant Harm to Client, Public or Administration of Justice (Std. 1.50)): In the U.S. 
Bankruptcy Court, Central District of California, respondent filed a creditor matrix which intentionally 
excluded the debtor’s landlord, and made no attempt to correct the misrepresentation until after the 
landlord discovered the bankruptcy and filed a Motion for Relief from Stay. Thereafter, respondent 
filed two additional declarations with the court which respondent later admitted on the record were false. 
Respondent’s actions mislead the court, the U.S. Trustee, the debtor’s landlord, and undermined public 
confidence in the legal profession. Once respondent’s misrepresentations came to light, the court had to 
expend further judicial resources in issuing its order to show cause and referral to the disciplinary panel.
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MITIGATING CIRCUMSTANCES. 
No Prior Record of Discipline: On June 5, 1995, the State Bar of California admitted 

respondent to the practice of law in California. Respondent has no record of discipline prior to this 
matter. At the time of the misconduct, respondent had practiced law in California for twenty-one years 
without discipline, which is worth significant weight in mitigation. (See Hawes v. State Bar (1990) 51 
Cal.3d 5 87, 596 [attorney’s ten years of discipline-free practice warranted significant weight in 
mitigation].) 

Extreme Emotional and Physical Difficulties: In 1980, respondent injured his back while 
weight training and was diagnosed with “military posture,” a condition which made his spine more 
susceptible to serious injury. Respondent was involved in car accidents which resulted in injuries in 
1986, 1987, 1992, 1993, 1994, and 2002. Respondent was diagnosed with post-traumatic stress disorder 
in 2006 following a divorce. In October 2017, during respondent’s disciplinary panel hearing in the 
United States Bankruptcy Court, respondent sought treatment from Dr. Gregory Wolf, M.D. for his 
conditions and began a multimodal course of therapy. In November 2018, Dr. Wolf reported that 
respondent’s conditions have stabilized, that his judgment is no longer impaired, and that further 
treatment is not necessary. At the time of the misconduct, respondent suffered from post-traumatic 
stress disorder and severe back pain caused by his spinal injuries. According to Dr. Wolf, these 
conditions impacted respondent’s mood stability and decision making. Dr. Wolf reports that respondent 
is now clear headed and stable. (In the Matter of Broderick (Review Dept. 1994), 3 Cal. State Bar Ct. 
Rptr. 138, 150 [emotional difficulties that cause misconduct warrant mitigation if the attorney no longer 
suffers from the difficulty].) ‘ 

Extraordinary Good Character: Fourteen character references attested to respondent’s good 
character. Twelve of the character references have knowledge of the full extent of the underlying 
misconduct. The character references are professional colleagues, personal friends, and family members 
of respondent. The character references have known respondent an extended period of time ranging 
from 5 to 55 years. Ten of the references have known respondent over 10 years. The references attest to 
respondent’s good moral character, integrity, and consistent willingness to help others. (In the Matter of 
Davis (Review Dept. 2003) 4 Cal. State Bar Ct. Rptr. 576, 591-592 [three witnesses accorded significant 
weight in mitigation due to their observation of the attomey’s daily conduct and mode of living]). 

Prefiling Stipulation: By entering into this stipulation, respondent has acknowledged 
misconduct and is entitled to mitigation for recognition of wrongdoing and saving the State Bar 
significant resources and time. (Silva- Vidor v. State Bar (1989) 49 Cal.3d 1071, 1079 [where mitigative 
credit was given for entering into a stipulation as to facts and culpability]; In the Matter of Spaith 
(Review Dept. 1996) 3 Cal. State Bar Ct. Rptr. 511, 521 [where the attorney's stipulation to facts and 
culpability was held to be a mitigating circumstance].) 

AUTHORITIES SUPPORTING DISCIPLINE. 
The Standards for Attorney Sanctions for Professional Misconduct “set forth a means for determining 
the appropriate disciplinaxy sanction in a particular case and to ensure consistency across cases dealing 
with similar misconduct and surrounding circumstances.” (Rules Proc. of State Bar, tit. IV, Stds. for 
Atty. Sanctions for Prof. Misconduct, std. 1.1. All further references to standards are to this source.) 
The standards help fulfill the primaty purposes of discipline, which include: protection of the public, the 
courts and the legal profession; maintenance of the highest professional standards; and preservation of 
public confidence in the legal profession. (See std. 1.1; In re Morse (1995) 11 Cal.4th 184, 205.)
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Although not binding, the standards are entitled to “great weigh ” and should be followed “whenever 
possible” in determining level of discipline. (In re Silverton (2005) 36 Cal.4th 81, 92, quoting In re 
Brown (1995) 12 Cal.4th 205, 220 and In re Young (1989) 49 Cal.3d 257, 267, fn. 11.) Adherence to the 
standards in the great majority of cases serves the Valuable purpose of eliminating disparity and assuring 
consistency, that is, the imposition of similar attorney discipline for instances of similar attorney 
misconduct. (In re Naney (1990) 51 Cal.3d 186, 190.) If a recommendation is at the high end or low 
end of a standard, an explanation must be given as to how the recommendation was reached. (Std. 1.1.) 
“Any disciplinary recommendation that deviates from the Standards must include clear reasons for the 
departure.” (Std. 1.1; Blair v. State Bar (1989) 49 Cal.3d 762, 776, fn. 5.) 

In determining whether to impose a sanction greater or less than that specified in a given standard, in 
addition to the factors set forth in the specific standard, consideration is to be given to the primary 
purposes of discipline; the balancing of all aggravating and mitigating circumstances; the type of 
misconduct at issue; whether the client, public, legal system or profession was harmed; and the 
member’s willingness and ability to conform to ethical responsibilities in the future. (Stds. 1.7(b) and 
(C)-) 

In this matter, the U.S. Bankruptcy Court, Central District of California found respondent culpable of 
professional misconduct in the court, and to detennine the appropriate sanction in this proceeding, it is 
necessary to consider the equivalent rule or statutory Violation under California law. Specifically, 
respondent’s misconduct in the U.S. Bankruptcy Court, Central District of California demonstrates 
violations of Business and Professions Code sections 6068(d) and 6106; and Rules of Professional 
Conduct, former rule 3-210. 

Standard 1.7(a) requires that where a respondent “commits two or more acts of misconduct and the 
Standards specify different sanctions for each act, the most severe sanction must be imposed.” 

The most severe sanctions applicable are found in Standard 2.11 and 2.12(a). Standard 2.11, which is 
applicable to respondent’s Violation of Business and Professions Code section 6106, provides: 

Disbarment or actual suspension is the presumed sanction for an act of moral turpitude, 
dishonesty, fraud, corruption, intentional or grossly negligent misrepresentation, or 
concealment of a material fact. The degree of sanction depends on the magnitude of the 
misconduct; the extent to which the misconduct harmed or misled the victim, which may 
include the adjudicator; the impact on the administration of justice, if any; and the extent 
to which the misconduct related to the member’s practice of law. 

Standard 2.12(a), which is applicable to respondent’s violation of Business and Professions Code 
section 6068(d), provides: 

Disbarment or actual suspension is the presumed sanction for disobedience or Violation of 
a court order related to the member’s practice of law, the attorney’s oath, or the duties 
required of an attorney under Business and Professions Code section 6068(a)(b)(d)(e)(f) 
or (h). 

In the U.S. Bankruptcy Court, Central District of California, respondent filed a creditor matrix which 
intentionally excluded the debtor’s landlord, and made no attempt to correct the misrepresentation until 
after the landlord discovered the bankruptcy and filed a Motion for Relief from Stay. Thereafier, 
respondent filed two additional declarations with the court which respondent later admitted on the record
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were false. Respondenfs actions mislead the court, the U.S. Trustee, the debtor’s landlord, and 
undermined public confidence in the legal profession. 

To determine the appropriate level of discipline, consideration must also be given to the aggravating and 
mitigating circumstances. In aggravation, respondent committed multiple Violations and harmed the 
administration of justice. Respondent has been afforded mitigation for his twenty-one years of 
discipline free practice, extraordinary good character, extreme physical and emotional difficulties, and 
entering into a prefiling stipulation. Given the balance of the these factors, a six month period of actual 
suspension is appropriate. 

In Maltaman v. State Bar (1987) 43 Cal. 3d 924, the California Supreme Court imposed a one year 
period of actual suspension to continue until the attorney passes the Multi-State Professional 
Responsibility Examination where an attorney willfully disobeyed court orders and sought advantage for 
his client by attempting to mislead a judicial officer. The court found no factors in mitigation and found 
that the attorney’s conduct was aggravated by his lack of candor and insight. 

Here, respondent repeatedly submitted pleadings to the court which contained deliberate 
misrepresentations, and in so doing, harmed the administration of justice. Unlike the attorney in 
Maltaman, respondent is being credited with mitigation for his twenty-one years of discipline free 
practice, good character, emotional and physical difficulties, and entering into a profiling stipulation. 
Accordingly, a six month period of actual suspension is adequate. 

COSTS OF DISCIPLINARY PROCEEDINGS. 
Respondent acknowledges that the Office of Chief Trial Counsel has informed respondent that as of 
December 17, 2018, the discipline costs in this matter are $2,585. Respondent further acknowledges 
that should this stipulation be rejected or should relief from the stipulation be granted, the costs in this 
matter may increase due to the cost of further proceedings.
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In the Matter of: Case Number(s): 
MARK REMAN HAMILTON 18-J-1 1755 

ACTUAL SUSPENSION ORDER 
Finding the stipulation to be fair to the parties and that it adequately protects the public. IT IS ORDERED that the 
requested dismissal of counts/charges, if any, is GRANTED without prejudice, and: 

[J The stipulated facts and disposition are APPROVED and the DISCIPLINE RECOMMENDED to the 
Supreme Court. 

XI The stipulated facts and disposition are APPROVED AS MODIFIED as set forth below, and the 
DISCIPLINE IS RECOMMENDED to the Supreme Court. 

C] All Hearing dates are vacated. 

1. On page 1 of the Stipulation, at paragraph A.(3), line 3, “17” is deleted, and in its place is inserted 
£61 8 '33 

2. The second page numbered “17” is renumbered “18.” 

The parties are bound by the stipulation as approved unless: 1) a motion to withdraw or modify the stipulation, filed 
within 15 days after service of this order, is granted; or 2) this court modifies or further modifies the approved 
stipulation. (See Rules Proc. of State Bar, rule 5.58(E) & (F).) The effective date of this disposition is the effective 
date of the Supreme Court order herein, normally 30 days after the filed date of the Supreme Court order. 
(See Cal. Rules of Court, rule 9.18(a).) 

.4’.a_;.4._ /-7. 610/‘) 
( 

’ 
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R ECCA MEY OS NBERG,FUDGE PRO'TEM 
State Bar Court 

(Effective July 1. 2018) 
Actual Suspension Order 
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8 UNITED STATES BANKRUPTCY COURT 
9 CENTRAL DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA 
10 LOS ANGELES DIVISION 
1 1 

12 In re: Case No: 2:17-mp-00108-PC 

13 The Disciplinary Proceeding of ORDER IMPOSING TWO YEAR MINIMUM 
14 MARK R. HAMILTON CONDITIONS FOR 

15 
Date: October 2, 2017 

16 Time: 10:00 a.m. 
Place: 255 E. Temple St. Rm. 1645 

17 Los Angeles, CA 90012 
18 

19 For the reasons set forth in the accompanying Memorandum Decision, it is 
20 hereby 

21 ORDERED that attorney Mark R. Hamilton, Esq. is suspended from admission to 
22 appear before any judge of this Bankruptcy Court for the Central District of California for 

23 a period of not less than two years from the date of entry of this order; and it is further 

24 ORDERED that thereafter Mr. Hamilton may apply to the Chief Judge of this 
25 Bankruptcy Court for reinstatement, pursuant to the procedures set forth below and in 

26 Fourth Amended General Order 96-05 (as it may be further amended from time to time); 
27 and it is further 

28 

. 1 -



._x 

G<D®\lO'>Cfl-h-(,\)lQ..| 

—\ —-L 

.3 NJ 

.5 03 

..n 
#- 

.3 U1 

.5 O) 

A ‘I 

A Q 
..\ CD 

M0 
IO ..L 

N)M 

N OD 

M -5 

I0 (II

N 6) 

ION 
Is.)G 

‘Case 2:17—mp—0O108—PC Doc 24 Filed 12/05/17 Entered 12/05/17 11:07:38 Desc 
Main Document Page 2 of 3 

ORDERED that to be eligible for reinstatement Mr. Hamilton must present 
admissible evidence of (a) rehabilitation from the psychological and physical 

impairments that allegedly have impaired his judgment as described in the 

accompanying Memorandum Decision, or any treatments or medications that are 
sufficient to mitigate or counteract the effects of those impairments on his judgment. and 

(b) that he has completed not less than three hours of continuing legaleducation on the 

topic of ethics, plus not less than six hours on the topic of bankruptcy; and it is further 

ORDERED that the request of the Office of the United States Trustee to award 
$800 in attorney fees to lkram Shah and lkram Shah and Fauzia Shah Trustees Of The 

Shah Family Trust Dated August 15, 1996 (collectively, "Landlord") is hereby DENIED. 

Peter H. Carroll. Presiding 

DATED: 12/05/201 7 

United States Bankruptcy Judge 

Neil W. Bason 
United States Bankruptcy Judge 

Scott H. Yun 

United States Bankruptcy Judge 

DATED: 12/05/2017 

DATED: 12/05/2017 LJ



Case 2:17-mp-00108-PC Doc 24 Filed 12/O5/17 Entered 12/05/17 11:07:38 Desc 
. 

; 
Main Document Page 3 of 3 

NOTICE OF ENTERED ORDER AND SERVICE LIST 

Notice is given by the court that a judgment or order entitled ORDER IMPOSING TWO YEAR MINIMUM 
SUSPENSION WITH CONDITIONS FOR REINSTA TEMENT was entered on the date indicated as 
"Entered" on the first page of this judgment or order and will be served in the manner indicated below: 

I. SERVED BY THE COURT VIA NOTICE OF ELECTRONIC FILING (“NEF”) B Pursuant to controlling 
General Order(s) and Local Bankruptcy Ru|e(s), the foregoing document was served on the following 
person(s) by the court via NEF and hyperlink to the judgment or order. As of December 5 2017, the 
following person(s) are currently on the Electronic Mail Notice List for this bankruptcy case or adversary 
proceeding to receive NEF transmission at the email address(es) indicated below. 
Frank Cadigan, Esq. frank.cadigan@usdoj.gov 

Ron Maroko, Esq. ron.maroko@usdoj.gov 

William.Sme|ko@procopio.com, Kristina.terlaga@procopio.com;ca|endaring@procopio.com 

United States Trustee (LA) ustpregion16.Ia.ecf@usdoj.gov 

E] Service information continued 
on attached page 

ll. SERVED BY THE COURT VIA U.S. MAIL: A copy of this notice and a true copy of this judgment or 
order was sent by United States Mail. first class, postage prepaid, to the following person(s) and/or 
entity(ies) at the address(es) indicated below: 

The State Bar of California The State Bar of California 
Office of the Chief Trial Counsel 
Intake Department 
845 South Figueroa St. 
Los Angeles, CA 90017-2515 

Elisabeth Mary Ziesmer Debtor 
8632 Orange Ave 
Orange, CA 92865 

Javier H Castillo, Esq. Attorney for Debtor 
Castillo Law Firm 
145 E. Rowland St, Ste. A 
Covina. CA 91723 
Ill. SERVED BY PERSONAL DELIVERY, OVERNIGHT MAIL, FACSIMILE TRANSMISSION OR 

EMAIL: 
Overnight Mail: 
Mark R. Hamilton, Esq. Carole J. Buckner, Esq. 
3024 E Chapman Ave #322 Procopio, Cory, Hargreaves & Savitch LLP 
Orange, CA 92869 525 B Street, Suite 2200 

San Diego, CA 92101
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4 CBEYPFRAL DISTRICT

5

6
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8 UNITED STATES BANKRUPTCY COURT 
9 CENTRAL DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA 
10 Los ANGELES DIVISION 
11 

12 In re: Case No: 2:17-mp-00108-P.C 

14 MARK R- HAMILTON conornous FOR REINSTATEMENT 
15 

Date: October 2, 2017 
16 Time: 10:00 a.m. 

Place: 255 E. Temple St. Rm. 1645 
17 Los Angeles, CA 90012 
18 

19 Attorney Mark R. Hamilton, Esq. was the attomey of record in the bankruptcy 

20 case of Elisabeth Mary Ziesmer ("Debtor") (Case No. 8:16-bk-13472—ES). In that case 

21 Mr. Hamilton (1) executed a creditor matrix that omitted Debtor's landlord; (2) executed 

22 his own declaration stating that the landlord had been intentionally omitted so as to hide 

23 the bankruptcy case from it; (3) prepared and filed Debtor’s nearly identical declaration; 

24 and (4) at a subsequent hearing, asserted that these things were merely his innocent 

25 error — apparently because he believed, based on unspecified advice from “the internet" 

26 and/or unspecified bankruptcy preparation software, that omitting a creditor would be 

27 “inconsequentia|." 

28 
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When the judge‘ presiding over the Ziesmer case raised ooncems about Mr. 
Hamilton's submission of these false declarations — and pointed out that he had failed to 
correct those falsehoods until he was questioned about them by the judge — he did not 
address those concéms. Instead he made several generic apologies without 
acknowledging or appearing to recognize what he had actually done wrong. 

Before this disciplinary panel Mr. Hamilton still has not squarely acknowledged 

his wrongdoing, let alone provided any assurance that he will avoid such conduct in 
future. We conclude that he must be suspended from practice before this Bankruptcy 
Court for a period of not less than two years. at which time he may petition for 
reinstatement, subject to conditions specified below and in the accompanying order 

implementing this Memorandum Decision. 
1. BACKGROUND‘ 

On August 17, 2016 Mr. Hamilton filed a Verification Of Master Mailing List Of 
Creditors (case dkt. 1, at PDF pp. 8-11) in which he and Debtor each certify “under 
penalty of perjury” that the attached master mailing list of creditors (the "Creditor 

Matrix”) “is complete, correct, and consistent with the Debtor’s schedules” and further 

stating that "I/we assume all responsibility for errors and omissions." In fact, the 

Creditor Matrix omitted Debtor’s landlord, lkram Shah and lkram Shah and Fauzia Shah 

Trustees Of The Shah Family Trust Dated August 15, 1996 (collectively, “Landlord”). 

On September 28, 2016 Landlord, having found out about the bankruptcy case, 
filed a motion for relief from the automatic stay (§ 362(d)) to be able to complete an 

unlawful detainer proceeding against Debtor (the “R/S Motion,” case dkt. 20). On 
October 11, 2016, Mr. Hamilton filed an amended Creditor Matrix adding Landlord (case 

' For brevity, documents are referred to by docket number rather than their full title (e.g., “mp dkt. _” for 
documents filed in this miscellaneous proceeding, or "case dkt. _” for documents filed in Debtor's 
bankruptcy case itself). Unless the context suggests otherwise, references to a "Chapter" or “Section" 
(“§”) refer to the United States Bankruptcy Code. 11 U.S.C. § 101 et seq. (the “Bankruptcy Code“). a 
“Rule” means one of the Federal Rules of Bankruptcy Procedure, Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, or 
other federal or local rule. and other terms have the meanings provided in the Bankruptcy Code, the 
Rules. and the parties‘ filed papers.
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dkt. 27) and an opposition to Landlord's R/S Motion which states that Landlord had 
been intentionally omitted from the Creditor Matrix: 

_D_et1c_>_r_qiggg intend that her landlord swould have an knowledge 
9f her bankruptcy. vwhich is the reason she left his name offthe creditor 
l_I§1. Now that the landlord has found out about the bankruptcy, Debtor 
wishes to reaffirm her executory contract with the landlord. [Case dkt. 29, 
at PDF p. 4,1] 3, emphasis added.] 

The opposition papers include Debtor's almost identical declaration: V 

hould For fear of economic bias, I did not intend that my landlord 
five any know edqg of this bankruptcy, which is he reason I leifi. s name 
off the creditor st. Now that the landlord/owner has found out a out the 
bankruptcy. I w sh to reaffirm her [sic] executory contract with her [sic] 
landlord. [Case dkt. 29, at PDF p. 5, 1| 2, emphasis added.] 

Prior to the hearing on the R/S Motion the presiding judge. The Honorable Erithe 
Smith, issued a tentative ruling granting the R18 Motion. _At the hearing, on October 20, 

3'

m 

2016, Mr. Hamilton engaged in the following colloquy with Judge Smith: 

MR. HAMILTON: It wou|d appear that the Court is gunishing my 
client for my error in failinq to include Mr. Shah as a creditor 

THE COURT: Hold on a minute. Could you just make that 
statement again? 

MR. HAMILTON: It would appear that the Court is shining light on 
the fact that I made an error as the debtor's attorney. I filed a creditor 
matrix address list that did not include the landlord. 

THE COURT: Let me stop you right there. I'm going to read [the] 
second sentence of the debtofs declaration. 

"For fear of economic bias I did not intend that mw landlord 
sh Md have arv mowledge of this bankruptcy wh ch is 1the reason I 

lefit his name off the creditor list. Now that the landlord has found 
out about the bankruptcy, I wisw to reaffirm the [sic] executory 
contrac 

So l’m not punishing your client for something you did. |’m 
responding to what she said she intentionally did. 

MR. HAMILTON: Your Honor, I wrote that for my client and it was in 
error. 

THE COURT: You submitted a declara ion mat is false? And vou 
allow it to stand and;/ou gidn’t correct it and she s qned It?
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MR. HAMILTON: I apologize. I throw myself on the mercy of the 
court and -- 

THE COURT: And you were not going to tell the Court about this? 
MR. HAMILTON: l’m here today, Your Honor. 
THE COURT: No. ._.. [T]hat should have been the first thing out of ‘ 

your m_ou_th that you submitted a declaration for your client that was false. 
[T]hlS IS very specific [and so is] your declaration. [The Court quotes 

from both declarations] 

MR. HAMILTON: I'm not understanding, Your Honor. Is it the 
Court's opinion that a landiord is allowed to punish a tenant for filing 
bankruptcy? 

THE COURT: Is it your understanding that a debtor does not 
disclose all her creditors and liabilities? 

MR. HAMILTON: It was my understanding. I misjudged what I saw 
on the Internet. I haven't been before this Court in ten years and I 

apologize for my error. I have had problems with the computer trying to 
interface with your software 

THE COURT: What on earth [] does that have to do with mg 
re uirement that is on the face of the petition that a debtor disclose all 
credi1_o_§ and all liabilities? 

MR. HAMILTON: |didn’t read it in ten years, Your Honor. 

THE COURT: [TJhis is completely unexpected. So basicafly now I 

have two declarations under penalty of perjury that are false? There's 
yours and the debtor's. 

MR. HAMILTON: I told her to give me all of her creditors. We filed 
on an emergency basis. All of the creditors were not listed. thouqht that 
it would be H inconsequential gursuant to writ I read on the n1emet and I 

was wrong I trusted a source on the intemet as to this issue [and] it 
was incorrect . 

THE COURT: What did the internet tel! you to do? 
MR. HAMILTON: I don’t have software to produce the forms. I 

purchased a product designed for laypersons and it said not to answer 
the question it was very confusing to me but I [] followed what it said. 

THE COURT: I have to say there are few times that I am 
completely speechless. I'm looking at a declaration that is very specific 
about an intent to leave the landlord off the list and that cannot be due to 
any software issues 

MR. HAMILTON: So the Court is very I] clearly punishing that act, 
that someone is to be evicted if they leave out their landlord in a
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bankruptcy [] petition they are automatically evicted at that point. Is that 
1 the law? 
2 THE COURT: For the second time this morning I am completely 
3 speecljless and mcredulous. [Y]ou’re not fully appreciating the 

ganormlty of what you’ve done here. You know, our entire system, at least 
4 In this district, relies on the efficacy of sworn statements that are [I 

providecj to the Court and I have before me two declarations under genalgy 
5 apgarently are completely false according to your 

regresentation o the our! today. And these declarations were submitted 
5 to the Co_urt and there was no attempt to advise the Court that there was 

anflhing Inaccurate or false about these documents until you started 
7 making the argument that I was punishing your client for something you 

did and‘ I pointed out that your client has submitted a declaration saying 
8 she deliberately [had] not listed her landlord because she didn't want her 

landlord to know anything about the bankruptcy. [T]he debtor does not 
9 have a right to intentionally not list certain creditors because she doesn't 

10 
want to. 

11
* 

12 THE COURT: Mr. Hamilton, I'm going to 1] be referring this A 

matter to our Court’s disciplinary panel because I think what you've done 
13 here today, submitting declarations that were false and not alerting [] the 

Court to the inaccuracy of the dec|aration[s] is completely not acceptable. 
14 It's not appropriate and I don't think you should be practicing n this district 

Lvowre rot qoing to familiarize yourslelf with the Rules and 9; 
15 complete v fort Hriaht _a__rm transparent when 1ou’re submifling sworn_ 

statements to the Court. 
16 

MR. HAMILTON: Your Honor, I apologize. I was doing pro bono 
17 work. I haven’t done this for ten years. 
18 THE COURT: Well, I commend you for doing pro bono work but 

I cannot condone submitting a declaration that is false. Two declarations. 
19 [T r. 10/20/16 (case dkt. 39), at pp. 3:8-9:16 and pp. 11:22-12:22] 
20 On February 14, 2017 the Office of the United States Trustee ("UST") filed a 
21 motion seeking to have Mr. Hamilton referred to this disciplinary panel for “filing false 

22 bankruptcy commencement documents, and specifically a false Verification [of the 
23 Creditor Matrix,]" and "not alerting the Court as to their falsity." Case dkt. 52, pp. 1:26- 

24 2:3, The UST’s motion attached and quoted extensively from the above-referenced 

25 documents and transcript, and also cited and quoted the relevant ethical rules and this 

26 Bankruptcy Court's Amended General Order 96-05, all described in the discussion 
27 below. 

28 

. 5 -
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Mr. Hamilton did not file any written opposition or appear at the hearing on the 
UST’s motion. On April 4, 2017 Judge Smith issued her written findings of fact and 
conclusions of law (case dkt. 58), her order (case dkt. 59) granting the UST’s motion, 

and the Statement Of Cause (case dkt. 60) referring this matter to this disciplinary 
panel. 

Judge Smith's detailed findings of fact and conclusions of law include the 

following: 

5. The Court concludes that the intentional omission of the landlord 
on the mailing matrix was done for an improper purpose, specifically, to 
hide from the landlord the fact that his tenant had filed a bankruptcy case. 
The intentional omission of the landlord from the mailing matrix has 
caused unnecessary delay and needless increase in the cost of litigation. 

6. The Court concludes that VcounseI’s actions have violated the 
provisions of F.R.B.P. Rule 9011. 

7. Pursuant to the California Rules of Professional Conduct 
(“CRPC") Ruie 3-210, a lawyer is prohibited from advising the violation of 
any law, rule or ruling or a tribunal unless he or she believes in good faith 
that such law, rule or ruling is invalid. 

8. Pursuant to the California Rules of Professional Conduct Rule 5- 
200, in presenting a matterto a tribunal, a member (B) Shall not seek to 
mislead the judge, judicial officer, or jury by an artifice or false statement 
of fact or law. 

9. The American Bar Association (“ABA”) Model Rules prohibit 
lawyers from knowingly counseling or assisting clients to commit a crime 
or fraud.

‘ 

10. Although California has not yet adopted a version of the ABA 
Model Rules, Model Rule 3.3 requires candor from an attorney towards 
the tribunal. Specifically Model Rule 3.3 subsection (a) provides that a 
lawyer shall not knowingly (1) make a false statement of fact or law to a 
tribunal or fail to correct a false statement of material fact or law previously 
made to the tribunal by the lawyer. 

11. The Court concludes from the evidence presented, which 
includes the declarations filed by counsel and the Debtor along with the 
skeletal petition filed on August 17, 2016 and the Verification of Master 
Mailing List of Creditors, signed under penalty of perjury by both the 
Debtor and attorney Mark R. Hamilton, attesting to the truth and accuracy 
of the list of creditors, that both the Debtor and attorney Mark R. Hamilton 
knew that the Master Mailing List of Creditors was false.
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_ 
12. The Qourt cqncludes that Mr. Hamilton knowingly signed and 

permfnttled his client to sign under penalty of perjury a document they knew was a se. 
13. The Court concludes that Mr. Hamilton made representations 

on the record at the October 20, 2016 hearing that call into question the 
veracity of the sworn statements he filed with the Court on behalf of 
himself and the Debtor. 

14. The Court concludes that attomey Mr. Hamilton violated the 
California Rules of Professional Conduct. and specifically CRPC Rule 
3.210; CRPC Rule 5-200, and F.R.B.P. Rule 9011. 

15. Mr. Hamilton filed no response or opposition to the OSC, nor 
did he appear at the hearing. Pursuant to Local Bankruptcy Rule (“LBR”) 
9013-1(h), failure of a party to timely file and serve documents may be 
deemed by the Court as consent to the relief requested. 

16. The Court concludes that there is cause to refer Mr. Hamilton to 
the Disciplinary Panel of the Central District of California with a 
recommendation that he be suspended from the practice of bankruptcy 
law in the Bankruptcy Court of the Central District of California and such 
other and further relief that the Disciplinary Panel deems ‘appropriate. 
[Findings Of Fact And Conclusions Of Law (case dkt. 58), pp. 5:16-7:8] 

On May 8, 2017 this disciplinary proceeding was opened. On September 1, 
2017 Mr. Hamilton filed a memorandum of points and authorities (mp dkt. 9) arguing 

that his “error” in “submitting the Master Mailing List which omitted reference to creditor 

lkram Shah" was attributable to his judgment having been impaired for various reasons. 

Id., p. 424-6. One asserted reason was his emotional involvement in the dispute 
between Landlord and Debtor, whom he describes as his girlfriend. Id., p. 4:6-11. 

Another asserted reason is “multiple medical and psychological issues." which are not 

specified. Id. Mr. Hamilton also did not specify or even raise those issues as reasons 

for his “erro|" in response to the R/S Motion, or at the hearing before Judge Smith, or in 

response to the UST’s motion seeking to have him referred to this disciplinary panel. 

Nevertheless, as described below, we permitted him to testify as to those issues in this 

disciplinary proceeding. 

Mr. Hamilton's memorandum also argues: 

Hamilton made a timely, good faith effort to rectify the 
consequences of his misconduct, by amending the list to include the 
landlord as a creditor when it was brought to his attention. Otherwise, 
Hamilton has practiced in bankruptcy court, and otherwise, without
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gncgdent _since 1995, had a discipline-free practice record other than an 
gncnqent m_ 2004 .. .. [He do_es not describe that incident except to say that 
It “d|d_not Involve the practuce of law or any clients and arose from the 
negative effects of a prescription drug" and resulted in an unspecified 
“Agreement in Lieu of Discipline"]. 

Hamilton recognizes the seriousness of his error and expressed 
remorse to the court when he apologized. Given the pro bono nature of 
this matter, he had no selfish motive. Accordingly, an admonition from the 
court is the appropriate sanction to deter. [Mr. Hamilton's Memorandum 
(mp dkt. 9), pp. 2:13-20 & 5:19-20] 

Mr. Hamilton asserts that there are mitigating factors including the following: 

Here, Hamilton's conduct involved a single incident, the filing of the 
[Creditor Matrix] without including the landlord, which did not involve a 
pattern of misconduct involving multiple incidents across multiple matters. 
Hamilton has no prior record of discipline other than entering into an 
Agreement in Lieu of Discipline on a matter unrelated to the practice of 
law. The matter did not cause significant harm to the administration of 
justice, because he rectified the error by filing an amended [Creditor 
Matrix] including the landlord as a creditor. Hamilton acknowledged his 
error and apologized to the court, asking for the court's mercy. 

In mitigation, the court may consider the absence of a prior 
disciplinary record, absence of a dishonest or selfish motive, personal or 
emotionafproblems, timely good faith effort to rectify consequences of 
misconduct, full and free disclosure to disciplinary board or cooperative 
attitude toward proceedings; inexperience in the practice of law, character 
or reputation; physical disability or mental disability, remorse and the 
remoteness of prior offenses, spontaneous candor and cooperation 
displayed to the victims of the misconduct, prompt objective steps, 
demonstrating spontaneous remorse and recognition of the wrongdoing 
and timely atonement. [Mr. Hamilton's Memorandum, (mp dkt. 9) 
pp. 8:20-9:6 (citation omitted)] 

On September 25, 2017 Mr. Hamilton filed his declaration stating, among other 
things, that “I corrected the matrix to add the missing landlord as soon as I knew the 

creditor matrix had been filed incorrectly” and “due to the attorney client privilege, and 

due to my duty of loyalty to my former client, the Debtor, I cannot further explain the 

circumstances that lead to the filing of the matrix without the landlord being listed 

without disclosure of confidential client communications." Mp dkt. 15. p. 2:6-15. He 
asserts that his judgment had been impaired due to unspecified medical issues, and 

that he did not appear at the hearing on the UST’s motion seeking sanctions because 

he had read the court's tentative ruling and did not have anything to add, and also
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“[b]ecause of extreme stress and back paln I left the court without appearing at the 

hearing.” Id., p. 2:22-25. 

The UST’s response states, among other things, “No attempt was made by Mr. 

Hamilton to correct the [Creditor Matrix] until responses were filed [by him] to the 

[Landlord’s R/S Motion]." Mp dkt. 18, p. 2:10-11. The UST also argues that Mr. 
Hamilton’s "unspecified medical issues" that allegedly impaired his judgment suggest 

“that he is a danger to the public. if he continues to practice law.” Id. p. 4:12-14. The 

UST recommends suspension from the practice of law in this Bankruptcy Court as well 
as preconditions to any reinstatement, such as evidence of rehabilitation, mandatory 

legal education in the area of ethics, and possibly public reproval. 

On October 2, 2017 this disciplinary panel held its hearing. Mr. Hamilton was 

present, represented by counsel. The UST’s attorneys were present, a|ong with a 

witness: the attorney for Landlord. 

At the commencement of the hearing this panel noted that Mr. Hamilton did not 

appear to be "taking issue with any of the findings of fact or conclusions of law made by 

Judge Smith." Tr. 10/2/17 (mp dkt. 22), p. 914-6. Mr. Hamilton's counsel affirmed that 

this was so and that "the issue that's really before this panel is whether [this disciplinary 

panel] should accept the recommendation of Judge Smith with regard to a suspension, 

as the appropriate remedy for the violations that Judge Smith has set forth in the 

findings and conclusions,” or alternatively accept Mr. Hami|ton’s recommendation that 

any sanction imposed not be more than a reprimand. !d., p. 9:7-17. 

Mr. Hamilton testified, and that testimony was expressly limited to the issue of 

possible mitigation. Tr. 10/2/17 (mp dkt. 22), p. 13:9-24. He testified that there is "some 

disagreement” as to the exact nature of his psychological conditions, but it could be 

characterized as “post traumatic stress disorder” and it "causes a lapse of reasoning 

ability." Id. p. 1523-8. In addition, he testified that he had “degenerative disc disease” ‘ 

and "multiple disc hernias” causing overwhelming pain all of which greatly impaired his 

performance in Debtor's bankruptcy case. Id. pp. 15:25-16:10. In addition, he testified
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that '‘I am not in control of my adrenaline" which means “I can't control this energy that I 

have.” Id. p. 1727-12. He added, “[M]y apology is sincere. My behavior was abhorrent. 
I'm aware of it. I have great difficulty reading the transcript. It's very embarrassing. I'm 

sorry.” Id. p. 17:15-17. 

The UST called Land|ord’s attorney, Fritz J. Firman, Esq. He testifled that 
Landlord became aware of Debtor’s bankruptcy at some point after filing an unlawful 

detainer complaint, and thereafter was delayed by the bankruptcy petition and incurred 

the expenses of attorney fees and costs in seeking relief from the automatic stay. 

In closing arguments Mr. Hamilton's bounsel argued, among other things, that 
“he trusted a source on the Internet" and “he made a mistake,” which “does not negate 

what he did, but it does give some more perspective to the entire situation.” Tr. 10/2/17 

(mp dkt. 22), p. 28:5-10. As to the false verification of the original Creditor Matrix, Mr. 

Hamilton's counsel argued that he could not divulge attorney-client communications but 

that the record already showed that "[h]e told her, give me all your creditors[,] [alnd 
beyond that, we don't have anything specific that gets into whether he told her to violate 

the Iaw.” Id. p. 292-5. 

The UST’s counsel argued that what Mr. Hamilton is "trying to do here is take 

findings that Judge Smith found involving intentional conduct, and saying, it's really a 

mistake.” Tr. 10/2/17 (mp dkt. 22), p. 35:8-10. The UST renewed its recommendation 
for suspension rather than simply an admonition. 

This matter was submitted at the conclusion of the disciplinary hearing. 

2. JURISDICTION, VENUE AND AUTHORITY 
This panel has jurisdiction and venue is proper under 28 U.S.C. §§ 1334 and 

1408. This panel also has the authority to enter a final judgment or order. See 28 

U.S.C. § 157(b)(2)(A); Stern v. Marshall. 131- S. Ct. 2594 (2011); Wellness Int’! Network, 

Ltd. V. Sharif, 135 S.Ct. 1932 (2015).
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3. DISCUSSION 
a. This Disciplinary Panel 
"In the federal system there is no unifonn procedure for disciplinary 

proceedings.” In re Lehtinen, 564 F.3d 1052, 1062 (9th Cir. 2009) (citation omitted). 

But the proceedings must be fair; evidence must support any factual findings; and the 

penalty imposed must be reasonable. In re Nguyen, 447 B.R. 268, 276 (9"‘ Cir. BAP 
2011) (citations and footnote omitted). 

To meet the foregoing standards, and in keeping with recommendations by the 

Bankruptcy Appellate Panel for the Ninth Circuit (the “BAP"), this Bankruptcy Court has 

established this disciplinary panel. See In re Brooks—HamiIton, 400 B.R. 238, 253 (9th 

Cir. BAP 2009). These disciplinary proceedings are governed by Fourlh Amended 
General Order 96-05 (included in mp dkt. 5). 

b. Ethical Standards 

Rule 9011 (Fed. R. Bankr. P.) provides in reievant part: 

(b) Representations to the Court. By presenting to the court (whether by 
signing, filing, submitting. or later advocating) a petition. pleading, written 
motion, or other paper, an attorney or unrepresented party is certifying 
that to the best of the person's knowledge, information, and belief, formed 
after an inguigy reasonable under the circumstance .— 

(1) it is not being gresented for any improper Qurgose, such as to 
harass or to cause unnecessary-delay or needless increase in the 
cost of litigation; 

I\"lt* 

(3) the allegations and other factual contentions have evidentiag; 
sugpgrt or, if specifically so identified, are likely to have evidentiary 
support after a reasonable opportunity for further investigation or 
discovery; 

iti- 

(c) Sanctions. If, after notice and a reasonable opportunity to respond, 
the court determines that subdivision (b) has been violated, the court 
may, subject to the conditions stated below, impose an appropriate
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sanction upon the attoméys, law firms, or parties that have violated 
subdivision (b) or are responsible for the violation. 

(1) How Initiated. 
ii-'k 

(B) On Court's Initiative. On its own initiative, the court may 
enter an order describing the specific conduct that appears 
to violate subdivision (b) and directing an attorney, law firm, 
or party to show cause why it has not violated subdivision (b) 
with respect thereto. 

(2) Nature of Sanction; Limitations. A sanction imposed for 
. violation of this rule shall be limited to what is sufficient to deter 
repetition of such conduct or comparable conduct by others 
similarly situated. Subject to the limitations in subparagraphs (A) 
and (B), the sanction may consist of, or include, directives of a 
nonmonetary nature, an order to pay a penalty into court. or, if 
imposed on motion and warranted for effective deterrence, an order 
directing payment to the movant of some or all of the reasonable 
attorneys’ fees and other expenses incurred as a direct result of the 

- violation. 

(A) Monetary sanctions may not be awarded against a 
represented party for a violation of subdivision (b)(2). 

(B) Monetary sanctions may not be awarded on the court's 
initiative unless the court issues its order to show cause 
before a voluntary dismissal or settlement of the claims 
made by or against the party which is, or whose attorneys 
are, to be sanctioned. 

(3) Order. When imposing sanctions, the court shall describe the 
conduct determined to constitute a violation of this rule and explain 
the basis for the sanction imposed. 

In addition, federal courts look to the ethical rules in the State in which they sit, 

as well as model and national ethical rules, guidelines, and general principles. See, 

e.g., In re Nguyen, 447 B.R. 268 (9"‘ Cir. BAP 2011). 
Rule 3-210 of the California Rules of Professional Conduct (the "California 

Rules") prohibits a lawyer from advising the violation bf any law, rule, or ruling of a 

tribunal unless the lawyer believes that authority is invalid in which event the lawyer 

may take appropriate steps in good faith to test its validity. Declarations are required to
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be true and correct, under penalty of perjury (28 U.S.C. § 1746). and Mr. Hamilton has 

not argued that such requirements are invalid. See California Rule 3-210. See UST's 

Request for Judicial Notice ("RJN") (case dkt. 53), Ex. J (copy of Cal. Rule 3-210). 

California Rule 5-200 states that in presenting a matter to a tribunal a lawyer 

shall employ such means only “as are consistent with the truth.” California Rule 

5-200(A) & (B). It also provides that a lawyer “shall not seek to misiead the judge” by 

any false statement of fact. Id. 

The American Bar Association ("ABA") has promulgated model rules regarding 

ethics (the “Model Rules”) '2 Model Rule 3.3(a) prohibits lawyers from knowingly making 

any false statement of fact to a tribunal, or failing to correct a false statement of materiaI 

fact previously made to the tribunal by the lawyer. Model Rule 1.2(d) prohibits lawyers 

from knowingly counseling or assisting clients to commit a fraud. See Model Rule 

1.2(d) and UST’s RJN (case dkt. 53), Ex. I (copy of official Comments to Model Rule 

1.2, in particular Comments "[9]" and “[1 O]”). 
Finally, and more broadly, this disciplinary panel takes into consideration all of 

the relevant facts and circumstances. Without detailing every consideration, when an 

attorney is alleged to have violated ethical standards we generally look to: 

(1) whether the duty violated was to a client, the public, the legal system, 
or the profession, (2) whether the attorney acted intentionally, knowingly 
or negligently, (3) the seriousness of the actual or potential injury caused 
by the attorney's misconduct, and (4) the existence of aggravating and 
mitigating factors. [Nguyen, 447 B.R. 268, 277 (summarizing ABA 
standards).] 

With these standards in mind we return to Mr. Hamilton’s conduct in Debtor's 

case, the findings of fact and conclusions of law by Judge Smith, and our analysis of the 

arguments and evidence in this disciplinary proceeding. 

2 Model Rule 1.2(d) is available at: 
https://www.americanbar.orq/groupsmrofessional responsibiIitv/publications/model rules of professional 

conduct.html (last checked 1 1/20/17).
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c. Mr. Hamilton's False Statements And Lack Of Acknowledgement Of His 
Wrongdoing Warrant A Minimum Two Year Suspension 

Judge Smith found and concluded that "both the Debtor and attorney Mark R. 

Hamilton knew that the Master Mailing List of Creditors was false.” Findings Of Fact 

And Conclusions Of Law (case dkt. 58), pp. 5:16-7:8. Mr. Hamilton has agreed that he 

is not contesting Judge Smith's findings of fact and conclusions of law, and in any event 

the record is clearthat he knew he and Debtor were falsely declaring, under penalty of 

perjury, that the Mailing Matrix was complete and correct, when in fact it omitted 

Landlord. Both Mr. Hamilton and Debtor later declared, again under penalty of perjury, 

that Debtor “did not intend that her landlord should have any knowledge" of the 

bankruptcy case, which was "the reason she left his name off the creditor list.” Case 

dkt. 29, at PDF pp. 4 113 & 5 112. 
Mr. Hamilton does not squarely acknowledge these facts. He appears to argue 

that he can characterize his omission of Landlord from the Creditor Matrix as a 

“mistake" or “error' because he purportediy believed, based on unspecified advice from 

“the internet" and/or unspecified bankruptcy preparation software, that omitting a 

creditor would be “inconsequential.” To reach that conclusion he has to ignore at least 

the following: 

(1) the actual text of the verification that he and Debtor signed, certifying 

"under penalty of perjury" that the Creditor Matrix is “complete” and "correct"; 

(2) his obligations under Rule 9011 to assure that this factual 

representation is adequately supported, and that the verified Creditor Matrix is 

not presented for any improper purpose such as concealing the bankruptcy case 

from Landlord; 

(3) his obligations under the California Rule 3-210 prohibiting a lawyer 

from advising Debtor to violate the requirement that declarations be true and 

correct (28 U.S.C. § 1746);
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(4) his obligations under California Rule 5-200 to employ such means only 
“as are consistent with the truth," and not to seek to mislead the court by any 

false statement of fact; and 

(5) his obligations under Model Rfiles 3.3(a) and 1.2(d) not to make false 

statements of fact to the court, or fail to correct material false statements, or 

counseling or assisting clients to commit a fraud, including a fraud upon the 

court. 

Mr. Hamilton points to the fact that he filed an amended Creditor Matn'x listing 

Landlord. He only did so after Landlord had already discovered the bankruptcy case 
and filed its R/S Motion. 

At the hearing on the R/S Motion Mr. Hamilton attempted to recharacterize the 

issue as Judge Smith punishing “a tenant for filing bankruptcy," rather than addressing 

the facts that (a) he had filed false declarations for himself and Debtor and (b) he faiied 

to correct those falsehoods (until after the court raised them). He continues to evade 

that issue in this disciplinary proceeding. As argued by the UST’s counsel at the 

disciplinary hearing, Mr. Hamilton has attempted to re-characterize as negligence the 

conduct that Judge Smith found was intentional. 

The duties violated by Mr. Hamilton have very serious implications. First, at the 

disciplinary hearing the UST’s counsel noted that false statements by Debtor may result 

in the UST seeking to deny her a bankruptcy discharge, so he has jeopardized his own 
client's interests. Second, as Judge Smith pointed out, the bankruptcy system depends 

on the accuracy of representations to the Bankruptcy Court, especially when those 

representations are made under penalty of perjury, such as his and Debtor's verification 

of the Creditor Matrix. By filing false declarations Mr. Hamilton has undermined the 

ability of the public to rely on anything filed by him, and he has undermined public 

confidence in the profession. Third, Mr. Hamilton continues to evade any actual 

acknowledgment of his wrongdoing, let alone provide any assurance that he can be 

trusted to behave differently in future.
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In mitigation, Mr. Hamilton's testimony provided evidence of some severe 
physical and psychological impairments, all of which appear to have affected his 

judgment. On the other hand, as the UST has argued, that cuts both ways because the 
alleged ongoing nature of those problems suggests that Mr. Hamilton will continue for 

an indefinite time to be impaired and a danger to the public and the bankruptcy system. 

Those considerations suggest that Mr. Hamilton should be eligible for reinstatement 

after a minimum period of suspension if he can provide persuasive evidence that his 

physical and psychological impairments have been mitigated or counteracted so that 

they will not similarly impair his judgment in future. 

4. CONCLUSION 
We conclude that Mr. Hamilton must be suspended, and that the period must be 

at least two years, and thereafter he may apply to the Chief Judge of this court for 
reinstatement. In addition, before being reinstated he must present admissible 

evidence of (a) rehabilitation from the psychological and physical impairments that 

allegedly have impaired his judgment, or any treatments or medications that are 

sufficient to mitigate or counteract the effects of those impairments on his judgment, and 

(b) that he has completed not less than three hours of continuing legal education on the 

topic of ethics, plus not less than six hours on the topic of bankruptcy. We, however, 

deny UST’s request to award Landlord $800 in attorney’s fees. Those fees were 

incurred because Landlord sought relief from the automatic stay, and there is no 

evidence that those fees would not have been incurred were it not for Mr. Hami|ton’s 

misconduct. An order incorporating the foregoing is being issued concurrent with this 

memorandum decision. 
### 

_. 
Peter H. Carroll, Presiding 

DATED: 12/05/2017
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DATED: 12/05/2017 I ? /x/W? 4/ a-c—v~»/\ 
Neil W. Bason 
United States Bankruptcy Judge 

Scott H. Yun 
DATED: 12/05/2017 

¢D®‘lO>U'I-§0Jk>-I 

United States Bankruptcy Judge ...\ C 
A. 

-3

4 IN) 

.1 (A) 

.4 A 

.3 
U‘! 

...x 03 

.x ‘I 

_| @ 
_.1 <0

NO
N -5

NN
N 0)

NA 
10 01

M O3 

[0N

NG



Case 2:17-mp—O0108—PC Doc'23 Filed 12/05/17 Entered 12/05/17 11:01:17 Desc 
Main Document Page 18 of 19 

PROOF OF SERVICE OF DOCUMENT 
I am over the age of 18 and not a party to this bankruptcy case or adversary proceeding. My business address is: 
255 E. Temple Street, Los Angeles, CA 90012 

A true and correct <_:o_py of the foregoing document entitled (specify): Case No; 2117-mp-00103-PC 
Memorandum Decusaon Imposing Two Year Minimum Suspension, Wlth Conditions For Reinstatement 

will be served or was served (a) on the judge in chambers in the form and manner required by LBR 5005-2(d); and (b) in 
the manner stated below: 

1. TO BE SERVED BY THE COURT VIA NOTICE OF ELECTRONIC FILING (NEF): Pursuant to controlling General 
Orders and LBR. the foregoing document will be served by the court via NEF and hyperlink to the document. On (date) 
12lQ5/2Q1Z , I checked the CM/ECF docket for this bankruptcy case or adversary proceeding and determined that 
the following persons are on the Electronic Mail Notice List to receive NEF transmission at the email addresses stated 
below: 
Frank Cadigan frank.cadigan@usdoj.gov 
Ron Maroko ron.maroko@usdoj.gov 
Vwlliam.Sme|ko@procopio.com, Kristina.ter|aga@procopio.com;calendaring@procopio.com 
United States Trustee (LA) ustpregion16.la.ecf@usdoj.gov 

E] Service information continued an attached page 

2. SERVED BY UNITED STATES MAIL: 
On (date) 1219512017 , I served the following persons and/or entities at the last known addresses in this bankruptcy 
case or adversary proceeding by placing a true and correct copy thereof in a sealed envelope in the United States mail, 
first class, postage prepaid, and addressed as follows. Listing the judge here constitutes a declaration that mailing to the 
judge will be completed no later than 24 hours after the document is filed. 

Javier H Castillo. Esq. 
Elisabeth Mary Ziesmer Castillo Law Firm 
8632 Orange Ave 145 E Rowland St.. Ste. A 
Orange, CA 92865 Covina, CA 91723 

I2] Service information continued on attached page 

3. SERVED BY PERSONAL DELIVERY OVERNIGHT MAIL FACSIMILE TRANSMISSION OR EMAIL state method 
for each gerson or entig served ): Pursuant to F.R.Civ.P. 5 and/or controlling LBR, on (date) 12/05/2017 , I served 
the following persons and/or entities by personal delivery, ovemlght mail service, or (for those who consented in writing to 
such service method), by facsimile transmission and/or email as follows. Listing the judge here constitutes a declaration 
that personal delivery on, or overnight mail to, the judge will be comgleted no later than 24 hours after the document is 
filed. 
Overnight Mail: Mark R. Hamilton, Esq. Carole J. Buckner, Esq. 

3024 E Chapman Ave #322 Procopio, Cory. Hargreaves & Savitch LLP 
Orange, CA 92869 525 B Street, Suite 2200 

San Diego, CA 92101 
E] Service information continued on attached page 

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the United States that the foregoing is true and correct. 

12/05/2017 Jennifer Kohout‘ 
Date Printed Name flignatulé 

This form is mandatory. It has been approved for use by the United States Bankruptcy Court for the Central District of California. 

June 2012 F 9013-3.1.PROOF.SERV|CE
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2:17-mp-00108-PC 

Certificate of Service Continued 

The State Bar of California The State Bar of California 
Office of the Chief Trial Counsel 
Intake Department 
845 South Figueroa St. 
Los Angeles, CA 90017-2515
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‘ pages, a full, copy of the complete document 
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Case#: 5% 
which includes: 1:: Exhibitsi ~1:I Attachments 

on file in my office Amarked location: 

D 255 E. Temple Streét, Suite 100 El 3420 Twélfthstreet, Suite 125 
Los Angeles, CA 90012 V 

; 
;RiVerside, CA 92501-3819 

I32’ 411 West 4th Street, Suite 2074 El 1415 State Street” 
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D 21041 Burbank Boulevard 
Woodland Hills, CA 91367 

KATHLEEN J. CAMPBELL 
Clerk of Court 
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THIS CERTIFICATION IS VALID ONLY WITH THE 
UNITED STATES BANKRUPTCY COURT SEAL. 

Revised August 2010
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1 PETER C. ANDERSON 
United States Trustee 

2 Frank M. Cadigan (Bar No. 095666) F“-ED & ENTERED 
3 

Assistant U.S. Trustee 
Ronald Reagan Federal Building 

and United States Courthouse APR 04 2017 
4 411 West Fourth Street, Suite 7160 

Santa Ana CA 92701-8000 
5 ’ CLERK U.S. BANKRUPTCY COURT 

Telephone: (714) 338-3400 Central District of California 

Facsimile: (714) 338-3421 BY ‘"*""° DEPUTY °'-ER“ 

Email: frank.cadigan@usdoj.gov 

UNITED STATES BANKRUPTCY COURT 
9 CENTRAL DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA 

10 
SANTA ANA DIVISION 

11 In re: CASE NUMBER: 8:16-bk-13472-ES 
12 ELISABETH MARY ZIESMER, CHAPTER 7 

13 FINDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS OF 
14 

LAW IN SUPPORT OF THE GRANTING OF 
THE U.S. TRUSTEE’S MOTION FOR ORDER 

15 
TO SHOW CAUSE (“osc”) WHY ATTORNEY 

Debtor. MARK R. HAMILTON SHOULD NOT BE 
16 

REFERRED TO THE DISCIPLINARY PANEL 
OF THE CENTRAL DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA 
Date: March 16, 2017 
Time: 10:30 A.M. 
Courtroom: “SA” 

22 The matter of the United States Trustee’s (“U.S. Trustee’s”) Motion for Order to Show 
23 

Cause (“OSC”) Why Attorney Mark R. Hamilton Should Not Be Referred to the Disciplinary Panel of the 
24 

25 
Central District of California [Docket #52], having come on regularly for hearing at the date and time 

26 indicated above, and Frank M. Cadigan having appeared for the U.S. Trustee and no opposition having 

27 been filed to the Motion and no appearance having been made by Attorney Mark R. Hamilton, and for the 

28 reasons stated on the record and in the tentative ruling, the Court makes the following Findings of Fact and

1



Case 8:16—bk—13472—ES Doc 58 Filed 04/04/17 Entered 04/04/17 09:53:53 Desc 
‘ 

‘ 

A Main Document Page 2 of 7 

I 

Conclusions of Law in support of the Order Granting U.S. Trustee’s Motion for Order to Show Cause 

2 Why Attorney Mark R. Hamilton Should Not Be Referred to the Disciplinary Panel of the Central District 

3 of California, filed concurrently with these findings. 

4 FINDINGS OF FACT: 
A. On August 17, 2016, the Debtor filed a skeletal individual Voluntary Chapter 7 bankruptcy 

petition. [ELECTRONIC DOCKET at Docket Entry #1 [“Docket # 1”] and the United States 

Trustee’s Request for Judicial Notice Re: Notice of Motion and Motion for Order to Show 

9 Cause Why Attorney Mark R. Hamilton Should Not Be Referred to the Disciplinary Panel of 

10 the Central District of California (“RJN”) Exhibit A, at bates stamp page 001] [Docket #53]. 

11 
B. The attorney of record for the Debtor was Mark R; Hamilton. RJN Exhibit B, at bates stamp 

12 
page 017. 

13 

14 
C. Attached to the skeletal petition was at Verification of Master Mailing List of Creditors which 

15 was filed in accordance with LBR 1007-1(a). [RJN Exhibit C, at bates stamp pages 018-021]. 

15 D. The Master Mailing List omitted any reference to or listing for one Ikram Shah and Ikram 

17 Ushahand auzia Shah Trustee of the Shah Family Trust Dated August 15, 1996, (the “Shah 

18 
Family Trust”). RJN Exhibit C, at bates stamp pages 018-02; Declaration of Elisabeth Mary 

1 9 
Ziesmer, Docket #29; RJN Exhibit F, at bates stamp page 045 paragraph 2, lines 4-5; 

20 

21 Declaration of Mark R. Hamilton, Docket #29; RJN Exhibit F, at bates stamp page 044 

22 paragraph 3, lines 8-10. 

23 E. On September 29, 2016, The Shah Family Trust filed a Motion for Relief from the Automatic 
24 

Stay seeking to terminate the Debtor’s right to occupy residential real property located at 1822 

:: 
Kilmer Drive, Placentia, CA. 92870. Docket #20; RJN Exhibit D, at bates stamp page 022- 

27 040.

28
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1 
F. On October 11, 2016, the Debtor filed a Response to the Motion for Relief ffom the Automatic 

2 Stay (“Stay Response”) attaching, in support of the Response, two declarations, one from the 

3 Debtor and a second from her counsel Mark R. Hamilton both stating that the landlord of the 

4 Debtor, who is a creditor, was intentionally left off the creditor mailing matrix because it was 
5 

the Debtor’s intent that the landlord not have any knowledge of the bankruptcy proceeding. 

: 
Docket #29; RJN Exhibit F, at bates stamp page 044, lines 8-10 and bates stamp page 045, lines 

8 
4-5. 

9 G. The declaration of Mr. Hamilton states in part: “Debtor did not intend that her landlord should 

10 have knowledge of the bankruptcy, which is the reason she left his name off the creditor list.” 

11 Docket #29; RJN Exhibit F, at bates stamp page 044, lines 8-10. 

1: 
H. The declaration of the Debtor states in part: “For fear of economic bias, I did not intend that 

14 
my landlord should have any knowledge of this bankruptcy, which is the reason I left his name 

15 off the creditor list.” Docket #29; RJN Exhibit F, at bates stamp page 045, lines 4-5. 

15 I. Also on October 11, 2016 the Debtor filed an Amended Verification of Master Mailing List of 

17 Creditors this time listing Ikram Shah on the mailing matrix. Docket #27. 

18 
J. At the hearing on October 20, 2016 on the motion for stay relief, Mr. Hamilton admitted he 

:2: 
knowingly filed the creditor matrix without including the landlord on the list of creditors. See 

21 Transcript Dated October 20, 2016 [RJN Exhibit H, at bates stamp page 063, lines 21-25.] 

22 K. At the hearing on October 20, 2016, Mr. Hamilton also represented to the Court that that failure 

23 to include the landlord on the list of creditors was his error and not the fault of the Debtor. See 

24 
Transcript Dated October 20, 2016 [RJN Exhibit H, at bates stamp page 063, lines 21-25.] 

:: 
L. When asked by the Court about the acknowledgement of the omission by the Debtor in her 

27 
declaration, Mr. Hamilton responded, “I wrote that declaration for my client and it was in 

28

3



Case 8:16—bk—13472-ES Doc 58 Filed 04/04/17 Entered 04/04/17 09:53:53 Desc 
‘ 

‘ 

: Main Document Page 4 of 7 

1 

error.” See Transcript Dated October 20, 2016 [RJN Exhibit H, at bates stamp page 064, lines 

2 18-19.] 

3 M. When asked by the Court if he had filed a false declaration without making effort to correct it, 

4 Mr. Hamilton responded, “I apologize. I throw myself on the mercy of the Court.” See 

5 
Transcript Dated October 20, 2016 [RJN Exhibit H, at bates. stamfi page 064, lines 21-25 and 

: 
page 065, line 1.] 

8 N. Throughout the course of the October 20, 2016 hearing, Mr. Hamilton ‘appeared not to fully 

9 appreciate the seriousness or ethical ramifications of his admitted errors. See, generally, 

10 Transcript Dated October 20, 2016 [RJN Exhibit H, at bates stamp pages 063-73]. 

11 
0. On February 14, 2017 the U.S. Trustee filed his OSC [Docket #52] seeking an Order referring 

1: 
Attorney Mark R. Hamilton to the Disciplinary Panel of the Central District of Califolinia and 

14 
concurrently therewith, a Request for Judicial Notice. Docket #53. 

15 P. Attorney Mark R. Hamilton did not file any opposition to the OSC nor did he appear at the 

16 hearing. See Electronic Filing Docket in Case No.: 8:16—bk—13472-ES and Order Granting U.S. 

17 
I 

Trustee Motion Re: OSC filed concurrently herewith. 
18 I 

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW: 

;: 
1. The Court concludes that it has jurisdiction over this matter pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §§ 157 and 

21 1334.
A 

22 2. The Court concludes that the Fourth Amended General Order 96-05 establishes a process for 

23 court wide discipline of attorneys in the bankruptcy court. If a bankruptcy judge wishes to 

24 
initiate proceedings under this general order, that judge (the “Referring Judge”) shall prepare 

:: 
and file with the Clerk of the Court a written Statement of Cause setting forth the judge’s basis 

27 for recommending discipline and a description of the discipline the referring judge believes is 

23 appropriate.

4



Case 8:16-bk-13472-ES Doc 58 Filed 04/04/17 Entered 04/04/17 09:53:53 Desc 
' Main Document Page 5 of 7 

1 
3. The Court concludes that Attorney Mark‘ R. Hamilton violated F .R.B.P. Rule 9011 (b). This 

2 Rule provides as follows: 

3 (b) Representations to the Court. By presenting to the court (whether by signing, 

4 filing, submitting, or later advocating) a petition, pleading, written motion, or other paper, 

5 
an attorney or unrepresented party is certifying that to the best of the person’s knowledge, 

: 
information, and belief, formed after an inquiry reasonable under the circumstances,-- 

8 (1) It is not presented for any improper purpose, such as to harass, or to cause unnecessary 

9 delay or needless increase in the cost of litigation. 

10 4. The Court concludes that, based upon the sworn statements set forth in the declarations 

11 
executed by each of them, Mr. Hamilton and the Debtor have admitted to intentionally leaving 

2: 
off the name of the landlord in the mailing matrix, based on the Debtor’s fear of “economic 

14 
bias”. Only after the landlord found out about the bankruptcy proceeding and filed a motion 

15 for stay relief, did the parties own up to the omission. 

15 5. The Court concludes that the intentional omission of the landlord on the mailing matrix was 

17 done for an improper purpose, specifically, to hide from the landlord the fact that his tenant had 

18 
filed a bankruptcy case. The intentional omission of the landlord from the mailing matrix has 

2: 
caused unnecessary delay and needless increase in the cost of litigation. 

21 6. The Court concludes that counse1’s actions have violated the provisions of F.R.B.P. Rule 9011. 

22 7. Pursuant to the California Rules of Professional Conduct (“CRPC”) Rule 3-210, a lawyer is 

23 prohibited from advising the violation of any law, rule or ruling or a tribunal unless he or she 

24 
believes in good faith that such law, rule or ruling is invalid. Also see ABA Form. Opn. 85- 

:: 
352-ethical standards governing lawyer’s advice re tax matters are identical to those governing 

27 other civil matters. 

28

5
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1 
8. Pursuant to the California Rules of Professional Conduct Rule 5-200, in presenting a matter to a 

2 tribunal, a member (B) Shall not seek to mislead the judge, judicial officer, or jury by an 

3 artifice or false statement of fact or law. 

4 9. The American Bar Association (“ABA”) Model Rules prohibit lawyers from knowingly 

5 
counseling or assisting clients to commit a crime or fraud. 

: 
10. Although California has not yet adopted a version of the ABA Model Rules, Model Rule 3.3 

8 
requires candor from an attorney towards the tribunal. Specifically Model Rule 3.3 subsection 

9 (a) provides that a lawyer shall not knowingly (1) make a false statement of fact or law to a 

10 tribunal or fail to correct a false statement of material fact or law previously made to the 

11 
tribunal by the lawyer. 

1: 
11. The Court concludes from the evidence presented, which includes the declarations filed by 

14 
counsel and the Debtor along with the skeletal petition filed on August 17, 2016 and the 

15 Verification of Master Mailing List of Creditors, signed under penalty of perjury by both the 

15 Debtor and attorney Mark R. Hamilton, attesting to the truth and accuracy of the list of 

17 creditors, that both the Debtor and attorney Mark R. Hamilton knew that the Master Mailing 
18 

List of Creditors was false. 

;: 
12. The Court concludes that Mr. Hamilton knowingly signed and permitted his client to sign 

21 under penalty of perjury a document they knew was false. 

22 13. The Court concludes that Mr. Hamilton made representations on the record at the October 20, 

23 2016 hearing that call into question the veracity of the sworn statements he filed with the 

'24 
Court on behalf of himself and the Debtor. 

:: 
14. The Court concludes that attorney Mr. Hamilton violated the California Rules of Professional 

27 Conduct, and specifically CRPC Rule 3.210; CRPC Rule 5-200, and F .R.B.P. Rule 9011. 

28

6
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15. Mr. Hamilton filed no response or opposition to the OSC, nor did he appear at the hearing. 

Pursuant to Local Bankruptcy Rule (“LBR”) 9013—1(h), failure of a party to timely file and 

serve documents may be deemed by the Court as consent to the relief requested. 

16. The Court concludes that there is cause to refer Mr. Hamilton to the Disciplinary Panel of the 

Central District of California with a recommendation that he be suspended from the practice of 

bankruptcy law in the Bankruptcy Court of the Central District of California and such other 

and further relief that the Disciplinary Panel deems appropriate. 

17. The Order constitutes a final order within the meaning of 28 U.S.C. § 158(a). 

18. To the extent that any Conclusions of Law set forth above constitute a Finding of Fact or vice 

versa, this Court also concludes or finds as appropriate. 

### 

éiafiflg 
Erfthe Smith 
United States Bankmptcy Judge 

Date: April 4, 2017
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Rule 9011. Signing of Papers; Representations to the Court; Sanctions; Verification and Copies 
of Papers 

(a) Signature. Every petition, pleading, written motlon, and other paper, except a list, schedule, or statement, or amendments thereto, 
shall be signed by at least one attorney of record in the attorney's Individual name. A party who Is not represented by an attorney shall sign 
all papers. Each paper shall state the signer’s address and telephone number, If any. An unsigned paper shall be stricken unless omission of 
the signature Is corrected promptly after being called to the attention of the attorney or party. 

(b) Representations to the court. By presenting to the court (whether by signing, filing, submitting, or later advocating) a petition, 
pleading, written motion, or other paper, an attorney or unrepresented party is certifying that to the best of the person's knowledge, 
Information, and belief, formed after an Inqulry reasonable under the circumstance$[.]— 

(1) It is not being presented for any Improper purpose, such as to harass or to cause unnecessary delay or needless increase in the cost 
of litigation; 

(2) the claims, defenses, and other legal contentions therein are warranted by exlstlng law or by a nonfrivolous argument for the 
extension, modification, or reversal of existing law or the establlshment of new law; 

(3) the allegations and other factual contentions have evldentiary support or, If specifically so identified, are likely to have evldentiary 
support after a reasonable opportunity for further investigation or discovery; and 

(4) the denials of factual contentions are warranted on the evidence or, I1‘ specifically so Identified, are reasonably based on a lack of 
information or belief. 

(c) Sanctions. If, after notice and a reasonable opportunity to respond, the court determines that subdivlslon (b) has been vlolated, the 
court may, subject to the conditions stated below, impose an appropriate sanction upon the attorneys, law firms, or parties that have 
violated subdivision (b) or are responslble for the violation. 

(1) How In/Hated. 

(A) By motion. A motion for sanctions under this rule shall be made separately from other motions or requests and shall describe 
the specific conduct alleged to violate subdivision (b). It shall be served as provided In Rule 7004. The motion for sanctions may not 
be filed with or presented to the court unless, within 21 days after service of the motion (or such other period as the court may 
prescribe), the challenged paper, claim, defense, contention, allegation, or denial is not withdrawn or appropriately corrected, 
except that this limitation shall not apply If the conduct alleged Is the flung of a petltlon In violation of subdivision (b). If warranted, 
the court may award to the party prevailing on the motion the reasonable expenses and attorney's fees Incurred in presenting or 
opposing the motion‘ Absent exceptional circumstances, a law firm shall be held jointly responsible for violations committed by Its 
partners, associates, and employees. 

(3) On court's Initiative. On In own initiative, the court may enter an order describing the specific conduct that appears to violate 
subdivision (b) and directing an attorney, law rln-n, or party to show cause why It has not violated subdivision (b) with respect 
thereto. 

(2) Nature of sanction; limitations. A sanction imposed for violation of this rule shall be limited to what is sufficient to deter repetition 
of such conduct or comparable conduct by others similarly situated. Subject to the limitations In subparagraphs (A) and (B), the 
sanction may consist of, or include, directives of a nonmonetary nature, an order to pay a penalty into court, or, if Imposed on motion 
and warranted for effective deterrence, an order directing payment to the movant of some or all of the . asonable attorneys’ fees and 
other expenses incurred as a direct result of the violation. 

(A) Monetary sanctions may not be awarded against a reprsented party for a vlolatlon of subdivision (b)(2). 

(B) Monetary sanctions may not be awarded on the court's inltlative unless the court Issues Its order to show cause before a 
voluntary dismissal or settlement of the claims made by or against the party which Is, or whose attorneys are, to be sanctioned. 

(3) Order. when Imposing sanctions, the court shall describe the conduct determined to constitute a violation of this rule and explain 
the basis for the sanction Imposed. 
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(d) Inapplicablflty to discovery. Subdivislons (a) through (c) of this rule do not apply to disciosures and dlscovery requests, responses, 
objections, and motions that are subject to the provisions of Ruls 7025 through 7037. 

(e) Verification. Except as otherwise specifically provided by these rules, papers flied in a case under the Code need. not be verified. 
Whenever verification is required by these rules, an unsworn declaration as provided in 2§ g.S.§. § ;74§ satisfies the requirement of 
verlfioatlon. 

(0 Copies of signed or verified papers. When these rules require copies of a signed or verified paper, it shall suffice if the origlnal Is 
signed or verified and the copies are conformed to the original. 

History 

(As amended March 30, 1987, eff. ‘Aug. 1, 1987; April 30, 1991, eff. Aug. 1, 1991; April 11, 1997, eff. Dec. 1, 

v Annotations 

NOt€S 
HISTORY; ANCILLARV LAWS AND DIRECTIVES 
id other provisions: 
' ' Ex; 1 notes: 
? Other provisions: 

~~ 

Notes of Advisory Committee. Note to Subdivision (5). Excepted from the papers which an attorney for a debtor must sign are lists, 
schedules, statements of financial affairs, statements of executory contracts, Chapter 13 Statements and amendments thereto. Rule 1008 
requires that these documents be verified by the debtor. Although the petition must also be verified, counsel for the debtor must sign the 
petition. See Official Form No. 1. An umuprasenbed party must sign all papers. 

i

3 
; 

S

,

~ 

The last sentence of this subdivision authorizes a broad range of sanctions. 

The word “document” Is used In this subdivision to refer to all papers which the attorney or party is required to sign. 

Note to Subdivision ([7). Subdivision (b) extends to all papers filed In cases under the Code the policy of minimizing reliance on the 
formalities of verification which is reflected In the thlrd sentence of gujg ;; Eeg, 5, Clv. P, The second sentence of subdlvislon (b) permits 
the substitution of an unsworn declaration for the verlflcatlon. See ;§ g.§ 9, § ;z4§. Rules requiring verification or an affidavit are as 
follows: Rule 1008, petitions, schedules, statements of financial affairs, Chapter 13 Statements and amendments; Rule 2006(e), list of 
multlple proxies and statement of facts and circumstances regarding their acquisition; Rule 4001(c), motion for ex parte relief from slay; 
Rule 7065, Incorpomtlng governing Issuance of temporary restraining order; Rule 8011(d), affidavit in support of 
emergency motion on appeal. 

7 Notes of Advisory Committee on 1987 amendments. The statement of intention of the debtor under § 521(2) of the Code is added to 
the documents which counsel Is not required to sign. 

5 Notes of Advisory Committee on 1991 amendments. Subdivision (a) is amended to conform to Rgjg 1.1 Fgg, 3, gig, B. where 
appropriate, but also to clarify that It applies to the unnecessary delay or needless Increase In the cost of the administration of the case. 

i 
Deletion of the references to specific statements that are excluded from the scope of this subdivision Is styllstlc. As used in subdivlslon (a) 

! of this rule, “statement” is limited to the statement of financial affairs and the statement of Intention required to be filed under Rule 1007. 
Deletion of the reference to the Chapter 13 Statement is consistent with the amendment to Rule 1007(b). 

Notes of Advisory Committee on 1997 amendments. This rule is amended to conform to the 1993 changes to fgg. g, gly‘ P, 1;. For 
an explanation of these amendments, see the advisory committee note to the 1993 amendments to 

E The ‘safe harbor” provision contained In subdlvlslon (c)(1)(A), which prohibits the filing of a motion for sanctions unless the challenged 
paper is not withdrawn or corrected within a prescribed time alter service of the motion, does not apply If the challenged paper Is a 
petition. The filing of a petition has Immedlate serious consequences, Including the imposttion of the automatic stay under § 362 of the 
Code, which may not be avoided by the subsequent withdrawal of the petition. In addition, a petition for relief under chapter 7 or chapter 

‘ 11 may not be withdrawn unless the court orders ‘Ismissal of the case for cause after notice and a hearing. 

GAP Report on Rule 9011. The proposed amendments to subdivision (a) were revised to clarify that a party not represented by an attorney 
must sign lists, schedules, and statements, as welt as other papers that are filed. 

T Explanatory notes: 
The comma In subdivision (b) has been enclosed in brackets to Indicate the probable Intent to remove It. 

INTERPRETIVE NOTES AND DECISIONS 
1 I. IN GENERAL 
1 1. Generally 
$ 2. Purpose 
3'} 3. uelatlonship to other laws and rules 
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Rule 3-210 Advising the Violation of Law 

A member shall not advise the violation of any law, rule, or ruling of a tribunal unless the member believes in good faith that such law, rule, or 
ruling is invalid. A member may take appropriate steps In good fa!th to test the validity of any law, rule, or ruling of a tribunal. 

History 

Rule 3-210 approved by Supreme Court November 28, 1988, operative May 27, 1989. 

Historical Derivation: 

Former Prof Cond rule 7-101. 

E v Annotations 

Commentary 
Discussion: 

5‘ 1988 

Rule 3-210 is intended to apply not only to the prospective conduct of a client but also to the Interaction between the member and client 
3 and to the specific legal service sought by the client from the member. An example of the former is the handling of physical evidence of a 

crime In the possession of the cllent and offered to the member. (See An 

E 
example of the latter Is a request that the member negotiate the return of stolen property In exchange for the owner's agreement not to 

i 
report the theft to the police or prosecutoriai authorities. (See Pgnjg y, Pig‘; Qggz) 3; ggggg 731 [1,§3 Qlfipfig. §§5].)

9 

Case Notes 

I Decisions Under Current Rule 
8 1. Dlsqualification 
la 2. Illustrative cases 
i Decisions Under Former Rule 
1' 1. Illustrative Cases 
3.‘ Decisions Under Current Rule 
3? 1. Disqualification 

Law firm's preparation of a promissory note on behalf of a borrower did not compel the flrm's disqualification as a matter of law under Prof 
1 Cond Rule 3-210 In an action brought by the borrower alleging usury; the firm did not advise the lender to vlolate the usury laws. ljgms 

— » - _ .. 

‘ review denied,
~ 
nv .11! . . 

In an action on a dlsablllty Insurance policy under Califomla law, defense counsel's ex parte contacts with the insured's consuttlng 
physlclan did not warrant disqualification of counsel; there was no violation of U.$. Dist. Ct., S.D. Cal., Clv. R. 83.4, which required 
attorneys to comply with California professional conduct rules, defense counsel did not violate by advising any 
Illegal act, defense counsel was not required to notify the insured‘s counsel before contacting the consulting physician, and communlcation 

III a’ '= I0 0 " — '.,,n -56... 1/1/7.018 alIn.I .I ‘ ‘. IIICI Il‘I ICII =
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about the relevant medical condition was permissible under Ex Q § 2_Q_6_ because confldentianty was walved. _Cr§|]§l;\_aw y, mggy gig ms, cg. 
2 D I 18 1 1 2 4 ' 

I: XI 

1 2. Illustrative Cases 
Because an optometrisfls communications with other optometrists Inviting pursuit of prospective legislation concerning mail order contad 
lens sales and the optometrlsfs dlscussions with a contact lens sales oorporatIon's attorney fell within one or more of the categories under 
ggfi § 42§.1§1g1, which defined acts in furtherance of petition or free speech rights, the trial court properiy found that the corporation's 
action against the optometrist for inducing breach of contract and fiduciary duty arose from acts in furtherance of the optometrist's rights 
of petition or free speech; because (1) the corporation did not establish a probability of prevailing on Its breach of contract claim, given 
that the evidence did not show that the optometrist's agreement to work with the corporation's attorney would have caused any such 
breach, (2) this tortlous charge was precluded by Q; § gz(Q)(1), the litigation privilege, (3) there was no showing that the optometrist, 
who was also an attorney, either knowingly assisted In any violation of Prof Cond Rules 1-120, 3-210, nor did such rules create a cause of 
action, pursuant to Prof Cond Rule 1-100(A), and (4) there was Insufficient evidence that the optometrlst knew that the attorney was 
going to breach a fiduciary duty to the corporation or Intended to assist in such a wrong, and any violation by the attorney of Utah Rules of 
Prof's Conduct 1.6(a), 1.9, also did not give rise to a cause of action, the trial court properly struck the complaint pursuant to §_(;_E_§~ -1,-IL I . . ‘l!i' ..|.L| - AU 0!: .0 |A4 -.3 _ -_I -3‘ .II ..-,n 
45_8_ review denied, I. XI 4 . 

3 Decisions Under Former Rule 
1' 1. Illustrative Cases 

Where attorney knowingly advised his client to make conveyance to defraud creditor, suspension of three years was not excessive in view 
of fact that party to such conveyance was guilty of misdemeanor, and In view of his prior record. Tgmggggd v. §_tg;g Bar 91: Callfgrgig 

2 (124§).3.2_§§.l.2_¢.52.....19l2 

§ Evidence that accused attorney, whlle representing persons mentioned In annulment actlons, prepared complaint so as to falsely allege 
promise of children before marriage and refusal to cohabit after marriage, and that, while there was child or children as result of marriages 

' 

Involved, attorney Instructed spouses In one case not to disclose child's existence and In other case prepared property settlement 
agreement mentioning children, sustained charge of vlolatlng this rule. Pa - v. a f Calif mi 1 4 I1 I 22 27 P2 

I L I 4 . 

Dlsbarment was appropriate discipline for an attorney, where he had fraudulentiy transformed an assignment of contract form Into a 
confession of judgment and knowingly offered It as genume, and had filed false Involuntary bankruptcy petitions, for the purpose of 
harassment and delay, where he advised ciients to make their deposition testimony unavailable, despite court orders, where he had made 
an unwarranted charge of blas and prejudlce against all the superior court judges In a county and had prepared a declaration for a client 
concalning offensive descriptions of opposing parties and counsel, where he had communicated with a judge in the absence of opposing 
counsel, concerning the merits of a contested action, and had given dellberately evasive deposition testimony and falled to answer proper 
questions, and where, though his asserted defense that his mental and emotional state was such that he was unable to use his 
Independent judgment and was under the Influence of one of his clients, possibly explained his actions, it neither justlfied them nor 
exonerated him from béanng the responsibility for his professional misconduct. n r v. Th r 1 76 1 

9 tr 64 04 6 al ex: . 

Research References & Practice Aids 
Collateral References: 

Ca! Jur 3d (Rev) Attorneys at Law § 222. 

Rutter, Cal Practice Guide, Professional Responsibility §§ 8:272 et seq. 

Law Review Articles: 

Legal ethlcs, client perjury and the privilege against self-incrimlnation. 13 Hast Const LQ 545. 

Legal Ethics and Professionalism Symposium. 12 San Diego LR 245. 

Ethics Year In Review. 
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Rule 5-200 Trial Conduct 

In presenting a matter to a tribunal, a member: 

(A) Shall employ, for the purpose of maintaining the causes confided to the member such means only as are consistent with truth; 

(B) Shall not seek to mislead the judge, judicial officer, or jury by an artifice or false statement of fact or law; 

(C) Shau not intentionally misquote to a tribunal the language of a book, statute, or decision; 

(D) Shall not, knowing its invalidity, cite as authority a decislon that has been overruled or a statute that has been repealed or 
> declared unconstitutional; and 

(E) Shall not assert personal knowledge of the facts at Issue, except when testlfylng as a wltness. 

History 

Rule 5-200 approved by Supreme Court November 28, 1988, operative May 27, 1989‘ 

Historical Derivation: 

Former Prof Cond rule 7-105. 

1‘ v Annotations 

Case Notes 

3'. Declslons Under Current Rule 
Q" 1. Generally 
3:" 2. Illustratlve Cases 
1'. Decisions Under Former Rule 
k 1. Evidence 
I 2. Discipline 
I 3. Illustrative Cases‘ 
I Declslons Under Current Rule 
’¥.. 1. Generally 

An attorney has a duty to employ, for tine purpose of malntalning the causes confided to him or her, such means only as are consistent 
wlth truth, and never to seek to mislead the judge or any judicial officer by any artifice or false statement of fact or law 
;_d_)). Further, a member of the Callfomla State Bar may not seek to mislead the judge, judlclal officer, or jury by an artlflce or false 
statement of fact or law (Prof Cond Rule 5—200(B)). Honesty In dealing with the courts is of paramount importance, and mislead! lg a 
Judge '5. "99afd'e$5 Of m0tiVe5: 3 SBVIOUS °fi'en5E- 

Q review denied, mnlgms v. Lg AnggI§ gggngy sgggrlgr Qqug (gas) 1225 Q). LEX;§ 5512. 
E 2. Illustrative Cases 
A defense attorney has an ethical obligation not to present perjured testimony, and the attorney's refusal to participate In such 
presentation does not deny the client effective assistance of counsel. Here, -‘efense counsel apparentiy believed that he had persuaded his
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client to testify truthfully to the limited questions he was asking on direct examination. Counsel chose this solution to the conflict dilemma 
and represented to the court that defendant agreed with such solution. While the trial court should perhaps have Inquired personally or 
defendant as to his understanding of and agreement with counsel's representations, such failure to do so was not prejudicial. Eegplg v. 
Jggmngg (122. Q! A99 415 Qjsg) 7Q ggj 3119 4th ggg,-§3 gal gm-r 2g 3;, 1,233 Q1 Am; LEXI: 203‘ review denied, (1999) gJ,g;gm§_§_gu11 
1‘n 0 —

I 

Court agreed with state bar court findings that an attorney repeatedly lied to the court In claiming to be unaware of the tlme of oral 
argument in a particular case prior to recelwng a telephone call from the clerk of court, and the evidence showed that the attorney knew 
of the date and told another associate that they did not need to appear; to lie in statements made to the court was a serious breach 
pursuant to § 55 E 9 § §Q_§§(d1, and clearly constituted contempt of court under ,c§L_§_1_2_@(_a)_{3), and the 
attorney was fined under QCE § 1,g1§ and referred pursuant to Q Q P Q § §Q§§.7(g), (c), for this and other conduct, to the Callfomla State 
Bar for further Investigation and, If necessary, the Imposition of additional sanctions. 13 Le Agujlgr (ZQO4) 33 gm 4m §§§ ;§ ggl 3p_1;r 351 
§7g 97 P351 §;§, 2094 9;! ;§XI§ 2030‘ reh'g denied, Aggi g: v, Lgmg; (2995) gggtx ggl, ;,§XI§ 1Q7§;a1, 

Pa rtles were not entitled to a stipulated reversal under §_C_Pj_12_8_La_)_(§) as part of the posttrlal settlement of an attorney fee dispute 
where they failed to explain their reasons in accordance with Cat. Ct. App., Flrst Dist, R. 8, and, because the trial court made findings 
regarding false statements to the court and representation of confllctlng Interests, where they might have been attempting to protect 
themselves from professional discipline under B Q P Q § §077 for violations of gal. R. Pggf, ggnggg, 5-299(3) 3_~_3_;Q{_Q, or from legal 
liability. 5 v Hi ' Alf ., . , ,, ,1 .- ’ 

,
H 

2 L . LEXI 4. 
~ ~ 

5 Decisions Under Former Rule 
5 1. Evidence 
There was clear and convincing evidence to support a finding that an attorney deliberately sought to mislead a judge by a faise statement 
of fact or artifice in vlolatlon of and former Prof Cond Rule 7-105 by falsely statlng that the attorney had not been 
advised by another judge to get a client to mediation and by falsely denying that the attorney had received a written order to do so. gag; 

at ar 9874 al 8‘%3Ca!Rtr 4 4 97 4 

T 2. Dlsclpllne 
Dlsbarment was appropriate discipline for an attorney, where he had fraudulently transformed an assignment of contract form into a 
confession of judgment and knowingly offered it as genuine, and had filed faise involuntary bankruptcy petitions, for the purpose of 
harassment and delay, where he advised clients to make their deposition testimony unavalla“-is, despite court orders, where he had made 
an unwarranted charge of bias and prejudlce against all the superior court judges in a county and had prepared a declaration for a client 
containlng offensive descriptions of opposing parties and counsel, where he had communicated with a judge In the absence of opposing 
counsel. concerning the merits of a contested action, and had given deliberateiy evasive deposition testimony and failed to answer proper 
questions, and where, though his asserted defense that his mental and emotional state was such that he was unable to use his 
independent judgment and was under the Influence of one of his clients, possibiy explained his actions, it neither Justified them nor 
exonerated him from bearing the responsibility for his professional misconduct. gnxdgr v, Thg sgatg Q: (_127§) ;§ gm 3;; ;§§ 333 gal 

6455Pd 4 976CaI S3 3. 

Suspension from the practice of law for one year with actual suspension for six months as recommended by the State Bar rather than 
ninety days actual suspension as recommended by the heanng panel was the appropriate discipline for an attorney found to have violated 
his oath and duties as an attorney within the meaning of E g P C §§ §Q§z, §9§§, §1_Q_1, and to have wllfully violated former Prof Cond Rule 
7-105 by signing documents for others under penalty of perjury, asserting their genuineness before a court, and urging his client to give 
false testimony. Though the attorney did not benefit from his actions and no one suffered any monetary Injury, honesty In dealing with the 
courts Is of paramount importance, and misleadi .9 a judge ls, regardless of motives, a serious offense; it is not necessary that actual 
harm has resulted to warrant disciplinary action where actual deception is Intended and shown. Moreover, the attorney had a past 
disciplinary record which included three separate offenses for which he received two private reprovals and a public reproval based on hls 
havlng wilfully failed to perform all of the services for which he had been retained. The attorney's present and past dishonesty 
demonstrated an habitual lack of appreciation and respect for his duties and responslblllties as an attorney and officer of the court. fig 

~ ~ 

'3 3. lflustrative Cases 

Attorney was not gullty of Intentional effort to mislead trial court in citlng as controlling |aw case which was apparently superseded by later 
case in which he had appeared as counsél for appellant where, on matter belng called to attention of trial court, he addrased letter to 
court that in his opinion pertinent declaration in case was dictum and did not serve to overrule earlier case relied on by him. §n_ag_t‘_tje_:_-_y_, 

t r Iif r i 4 6 2 0 P2 1 I 

An attorney's false statement to the court in a small clalms action against him by a client that he was prepared to pay the client's 
judgment at once and his concealment of any reservations or conditions to Immediate payment violated former Prof Cond Rule 7—105( 1) 
(misleading a court by a false statement of fact or law), and Involved moral turpitude. 

modified. (1984. Cal) modified. (1934, Cal) 

An attorney violated B Q P 9 § §;9§ (commission of an act Involving moral turpltude), and 13_§_gg_§_§gg1g), (falling to employ ‘such 
means only as are consistent with truth"), and former Prof Cond Rule 7-105(1), by answering Interrogatories directed to his client himself 
and attaching one of the client's prmlgned verifications, when the attorney could not locate the client. The use of a presigned verification 
in discovery proceedings, wlthout first oonsuttlng wlth the dient to assure that any assertions of fact are true, Is a clear and serious

~ 
violation of the rules and former CCP § 2030. D 24:! 71 I LEXIm 
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RULE 3.3: CANDOR TOWARD THE TRIBUNAL 
October, 2016 

ABA Model Rules of Professional Conduct and Code of Judicial 
Conduct ADVOCATE 

ADVOCATE 

Core Terms 

tribunal, disclosure, false evidence, offer evidence, withdraw, remedial 
measure, adjudicative process 

Notice 

Comment 

[1] This Rule governs the conduct of a lawyer who is representing a client in the 
proceedings of a tribunal. See Rule 1.0(m) for the definition of "tribunal." It also 
applies when the lawyer is representing a client in an ancillary proceeding 
conducted pursuant to the tribuna|'s adjudicative authority, such as a deposition. 
Thus, for example, paragraph (a) (3) requires a lawyer to take reasonable 
remedial measures if the lawyer comes to know that a client who is testifying in a 

deposition has offered evidence that is false. 

[2] This Rule sets forth the special duties of lawyers as officers of the court to 
avoid conduct that undermines the integrity of the adjudicative process. A lawyer 
acting as an advocate in an adjudicative proceeding has an obligation to present 
the client's case with persuasive force. Performance of that duty while 
maintaining confidences of the client, however, is qualified by the advocate's 
duty of candor to the tribunal. Consequently, although a lawyer in an adversary 
proceeding is not required to present an impartial exposition of the law or to 
vouch for the evidence submitted in a cause, the lawyer must not allow the 
tribunal to be misled by false statements of law or fact or evidence that the 
lawyer knows to be false. 

Representations by a Lawyer 

12/17/2018
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__§sserted therein, for litigation documents ordinarily present assertions by the 

i 
(30 to V élient, or by someone on the client's behalf, and not assertions by<l1q§5\fyg,5. Results “St > 

Compare Rule 3.1. However, an assertion purporting to be on the lawyer's own 
knowledge, as in an affidavit by the lawyer or in a statement in open court, may 
properly be made only when the lawyer knows the assertion is true or believes it 
to be true on the basis of a reasonably diligent inquiry. There are circumstances 
where failure to make a disclosure is the equivalent of an affirmative 
misrepresentation. The obligation prescribed in Rule 1.2(d) not to counsel a client 
to commit or assist the client in committing a fraud applies in litigation. 
Regarding compliance with Rule 1.2(d), see the Comment to that Rule. See also 
the Comment to Rule 8.4(b). 

l,.M_~“W 

Legal Argument 

[4] Legal argument based on a knowingly false representation of law constitutes 
dishonesty toward the tribunal. A lawyer is not required to make a disinterested 
exposition of the law, but must recognize the existence of pertinent legal 
authorities. Furthermore, as stated in paragraph (a)(2), an advocate has a duty 
to disclose directly adverse authority in the controlling jurisdiction that has not 
been disclosed by the opposing party. The underlying concept is that legal 
argument is a discussion seeking to determine the legal premises properly 
applicable to the case. 

Offering Evidence 

[5] Paragraph (a)(3) requires that the lawyer refuse to offer evidence that the 
lawyer knows to be false, regardless of the client's wishes. This duty is premised 
on the lawyer's obligation as an officer of the court to prevent the trier of fact 
from being misled by false evidence. A lawyer does not violate this Rule if the 

lawyer offers the evidence for the purpose of establishing its falsity. 

[6] If a lawyer knows that the client intends to testify falsely or wants the lawyer 
to introduce false evidence, the lawyer should seek to persuade the client that 
the evidence should not be offered. If the persuasion is ineffective and the lawyer 
continues to represent the client, the lawyer must refuse to offer the false 
evidence. If only a portion of a witness's testimony will be false, the lawyer may 
call the witness to testify but may not elicit or othen/vise permit the witness to 
present the testimony that the lawyer knows is false. 

[7] The duties stated in paragraphs (a) and (b) apply to all lawyers, including /P 
defense counsel in criminal cases. In some jurisdictions, however, courts have 
required counsel to present the accused as a witness or to give a narrative 
statement if the accused so desires, even if counsel knows that the testimony or 
statement will be false. The obligation of the advocate under the Rules of 
Professional Conduct is subordinate to such requirements. See also Comment 
[9]. 
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false does not preclude its presentation to the trier of fact. A lawyer's knowledge 
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Go to V that evidence IS false, however, can be Inferred from the CIl‘CUmSt<‘ICf§.o$m_R§!l.||ReSu]-ts “st > 
”“""'“"‘“‘”“"”“‘"”“‘"‘1.0(f). Thus, although a lawyer should resolve doubts about the veracity of 

testimony or other evidence in favor of the client, the lawyer cannot ignore an 
obvious falsehood. 

[9] Although paragraph (a)(3) only prohibits a lawyer from offering evidence the 
lawyer knows to be false, it permits the lawyer to refuse to offer testimony or 
other proof that the lawyer reasonably believes is false. Offering such proof may 
reflect adversely on the lawyer's ability to discriminate in the quality of evidence 
and thus impair the lawyer's effectiveness as an advocate. Because of the special 
protections historically provided criminal defendants, however, this Rule does not 
permit a lawyer to refuse to offer the testimony of such a client where the lawyer 
reasonably believes but does not know that the testimony will be false. Unless 
the lawyer knows the testimony will be false, the lawyer must honor the client's 
decision to testify. See also Comment [7]. 

Remedial Measures 

[10] Having offered material evidence in the belief that it was true, a lawyer may 
subsequently come to know that the evidence is false. Or, a lawyer may be 
surprised when the lawyer's client, or another witness called by the lawyer, offers 
testimony the lawyer knows to be false, either during the lawyer's direct 
examination or in response to cross-examination by the opposing lawyer. In such 
situations or if the lawyer knows of the falsity of testimony elicited from the client 
during a deposition, the lawyer must take reasonable remedial measures. In such 
situations, the advocate's proper course is to remonstrate with the client 
confidentially, advise the client of the lawyer's duty of candor to the tribunal and 
seek the client's cooperation with respect to the withdrawal or correction of the 
false statements or evidence. If that fails, the advocate must take further 
remedial action. If withdrawal from the representation is not permitted or will not 
undo the effect of the false evidence, the advocate must make such disclosure to 
the tribunal as is reasonably necessary to remedy the situation, even if doing so 
requires the lawyer to reveal information that otherwise would be protected by 
Rule 1.6. It is for the tribunal then to determine what should be done--making a 

statement about the matter to the trier of fact, ordering a mistrial or perhaps 
nothing. 

[11] The disclosure of a client's false testimony can result in grave consequences /[\ 

to the client, including not only a sense of betrayal but also loss of the case and 
perhaps a prosecution for perjury. But the alternative is that the lawyer 
cooperate in deceiving the court, thereby subverting the truth-finding process 
which the adversary system is designed to implement. See Rule 1.2(d). 
Furthermore, unless it is clearly understood that the lawyer will act upon the duty 
to disclose the existence of false evidence, the client can simply reject the 
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[12] Lawyers have a special obligation to protect a tribunal against criminal or 
fraudulent conduct that undermines the integrity of the adjudicative process, 
such as bribing, intimidating or otherwise unlawfully communicating with a 

witness, juror, court official or other participant in the proceeding, unlawfully 

destroying or concealing documents or other evidence or failing to disclose 
information to the tribunal when required by law to do so. Thus, paragraph (b) 
requires a lawyer to take reasonable remedial measures, including disclosure if 

necessary, whenever the lawyer knows that a person, including the lawyer's 
client, intends to engage, is engaging or has engaged in criminal or fraudulent 
conduct related to the proceeding. 

Duration of Obligation 

[13] A practical time limit on the obligation to rectify false evidence or false 
statements of law and fact has to be established. The conclusion of the 
proceeding is a reasonably definite point for the termination of the obligation. A 
proceeding has concluded within the meaning of this Rule when a final judgment 
in the proceeding has been affirmed on appeal or the time for review has passed. 

Ex Parte Proceedings 

[14] Ordinarily, an advocate has the limited responsibility of presenting one side 
of the matters that a tribunal should consider in reaching a decision; the 
conflicting position is expected to be presented by the opposing party. However, 
in any ex parte proceeding, such as an application for a temporary restraining 
order, there is no balance of presentation by opposing advocates. The object of 
an ex parte proceeding is nevertheless to yield a substantiallyjust result. The 
judge has an affirmative responsibility to accord the absent partyjust 
consideration. The lawyer for the represented party has the correlative duty to 
make disclosures of material facts known to the lawyer and that the lawyer 
reasonably believes are necessary to an informed decision. 

Withdrawal 

[15] Normally, a lawyer's compliance with the duty of candor imposed by this 
Rule does not require that the lawyer withdraw from the representation of a 

client whose interests will be or have been adversely affected by the lawyer's /F 
disclosure. The lawyer may, however, be required by Rule 1.16(a) to seek 
permission of the tribunal to withdraw if the lawyer's compliance with this Rule's 

duty of candor results in such an extreme deterioration of the client~Iawyer 
relationship that the lawyer can no longer competently represent the client. Also 
see Rule 1.16(b) for the circumstances in which a lawyer will be permitted to 
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Definitional Cross-References 

"Fraudulent" See Rule 1.0(d) 

"Knowingly" and "Known" and "Knows" See Rule 1.0(f) 

"Reasonable" See Rule 1.0(h) 

"Reasonably believes" See Rule 1.00) 

"Tribunal" See Rule 1.0(m) 

RULE 3.3: CANDOR TOWARD THE TRIBUNAL 

(a) A lawyer shall not knowingly: 

(1) make a false statement of fact or law to a 
tribunal or fail to correct a false statement of 
material fact or law previously made to the 
tribunal by the lawyer; 

(2) fail to disclose to the tribunal legal authority 
in the controlling jurisdiction known to the 
lawyer to be directly adverse to the position of 
the client and not disclosed by opposing counsel; 
or 

(3) offer evidence that the lawyer knows to be 
false. If a lawyer, the lawyer's client, or a 
witness called by the lawyer, has offered 
material evidence and the lawyer comes to know 
of its falsity, the lawyer shall take reasonable 
remedial measures, including, if necessary, 
disclosure to the tribunal. A lawyer may refuse to 
offer evidence, other than the testimony of a 
defendant in a criminal matter, that the lawyer 
reasonably believes is false. 

/I\ 

(b) A lawyer who represents a client in an adjudicative 
proceeding and who knows that a person intends to engage, 
is engaging or has engaged in criminal or fraudulent conduct 
related to the proceeding shall take reasonable remedial 
measures, including, if necessary, disclosure to the tribunal. 
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(d) In an ex parte proceeding, a lawyer shall inform the 
tribunal of all material facts known to the lawyer that will 
enable the tribunal to make an informed decision, whether or 
not the facts are adverse. 
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Notice 

Comment 

Allocation of/luthorlty between Client and Lawyer 

[1] Paragraph (a) confers upon the client the ultimate authority to determine the purposes to be served by legal representation, within the 
limits imposed by law and the lawyer's professlonal obllgations. The decisions specified in paragraph (a). such as whether to settle a civil 
matter, must also be made by the client. See Rule 1‘4(a)(1) for the lawyer's duty to communicate with the client about such decisions. with 
respect to the means by which the client's objectives are to be pursued, the lawyer shall consult with the cilent as required by Rule 1.4(a)(2) 
and may take such action as Is implledly authorized to cany out the representation. 

[2] On occasion, however, a lawyer and a client may dlsagree about the means to be used to accomplish the client's objectives. Clients 
normally defer to the special knowledge and skill of their lawyer with respect to the means to be used to accomplish their objectives, 
particularly with respect to technical, legal and tactical matters. Conversely, lawyers usually defer to the client regarding such questions as the 
expense to be Incurred and concern for third persons who might be adversely affected. Because of the varled nature of the matters about which 
a lawyer and client might disagree and because the actions in question may implicate the Interests of a tribunal or other persons, this Rule does 
not prescribe how such disagreements are to be resolved. other law, however, may be applicable and should be consulted by the lawyer. The 
lawyer should also consult with the cnent and seek a mutually acceptable resolution of the disagreement. If such efforts are unavamng and the 
lawyer has a fundamental disagreement with the client, the lawyer may wlthdraw from the representation. See Rule 1.16(b)(4). Conversely, the 
client may resolve the disagreement by discharging the lawyer. See Rule 1.16(a)(3). 

[3] At the outset of a representation, the client may authorize the lawyer to take specific action on the client's behalf without further 
consultation. Absent a material change In circumstances and subject to Rule 1.4, a lawyer may rely on such an advance authorization. The 
client may, however, revoke such authority at any tlme. 

[4] In a case In which the client appears to be suffering diminished capacity, the lawyer's duty to abide by the client's declslons is to be guided 
by reference to Rule 1.14. 

Independence from Client's Views or Activities 

[5] Legal reprsentation should not be denied to people who are unable to afford Iegal services, or whose cause is controversial or the subject 
of popular disapproval. By the same token, representing a cllent does not constitute approval of the cIient's views or activities. 

Agreements Limiting Scope of Rcpresenmtion 

[6] The scope of services to be provided by a lawyer may be limited by agreement with the client or by the terms under which the lawyer's 
services are made available to the client. when a lawyer has been retained by an Insurer to represent an insured, for example, the 
representation may be limited to matters reiated to the Insurance coverage. A limited representation may be appropriate because the client has 
Ilmited objectives for the representation. In addition, the terms upon which representation is undertaken may exclude specific means that might 
otherwise be used to accomplish the client's objectives. Such limitations may exclude actions that the client thinks are too costiy or that the 
lawyer regards as repugnant or Imprudent. 

[7] Although this Rule affords the lawyer and client substantial latitude to limit the representation, the limitation must be reasonable under the 
clrcurnstan - . If, for example, a client's objective Is Ilmlted to securing general Information about the law the client needs in order to handle a 
common and typically uncompllcated legal problem, the lawyer and dlent may agree that the lawyer's services will be limited to a brief 
telephone consultation. Such a limitation, however, would not be reasonable if the time allotted was not sufficient to yield advice upon which 
the client could rely. Although an agreement for a limited representation does not exempt a lawyer from the duty to provide competent 
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[8] All agreements concerning a lawyer's representation of a client must accord with the Rules of Professional Conduct and other law. See, e.g., 
Rules 1.1, 1.8 and 5.6. 
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[9] Paragraph (:1) prohibits a lawyer from knowingly counseling or assisting a client to commit a crime or fraud. This prohibition, however, 
does not preclude the lawyer from glving an honest opinion about the actuai consequences that appear likely to result from a dient‘s conduct. 
Nor does the fact that a client uses advice in a course of action that is criminal or fraudulent of itself make a lawyer a party to the course of 
action. There is a critical distinction between presenting an analysis of lega! aspects of questionable conduct and recommending the means by 
which a crlme or fraud might be committed wlth impunity. 

[10] when the client's course of action has already begun and Is continuing, the lawyer's responsibility is especially dellcate. The lawyer is 
required to avoid assisting the client, for example, by drafting or delivering documents that the lawyer knows are fraudulent or by suggesting 
how the wrongdoing might be concealed. A lawyer may not continue assisting a client in conduct that the lawyer originally supposed was legally 
proper but then discovers is criminal or fraudulent. The lawyer must, therefore, withdraw from the representation of the cllent in the matter. 
See Rule 1.16(a). In some cases, withdrawal alone might be Insufficient. It may be necessary for the lawyer to give notice of the fact of 
withdrawal and to dlsaffirm any opiznion, document, affirmation or the like. See Rule 4.1. 

[11] Where the client Is a fiduciary, the lawyer may be charged with special obligations In dealings with a beneficiary. 

[12] Paragraph (d) applies whether or not the defrauded party is a party to the transaction. Hence, a lawyer must not participate In a 
transaction to effectuate criminal or fraudulent avoidance of tax liability. Paragraph (d) does not preclude undertaking a criminal defense 
incident to a general retainer for legal services to a lawful enterprise. The last clause of paragraph (d) recognizes that determining the validky 
or interpretation of a statute or regulation may require a course of action involving disobedience of the statute or regulation or of the 
Interpretation placed upon it by governmental authorities. 

[13] If a lawyer comes to know or reasonably should know that a cllent expects assistance not permitted by the Rules of Professlonal Conduct 
or other law or If the lawyer intends to act contrary to the client's Instructions, the lawyer must consutt with the client regarding the limitations 
on the lawyer's conduct. See Rule 1.4(a)(5). 

Deflnltlonal cross-References 

"Fraudulent" See Rule 1.0(d) 

"Informed consent" See Ruie 1.0(e) 

"Knows" See Rule 1.0(f) 

"Reasonable" See Rule 1.0(h) 

RULE 1.2: SCOPE OF REPRESENTATION AND ALLOCATION OF AUTHORITY BETWEEN CLIENT 
AND LAWYER 

(a) Subject to paragraphs (c) and (d), a lawyer shall abide by a client's decisions concerning the objectives of 
representa ' and, as required by Rule 1.4, shall consult with the client as to the means by which they are to be 
pursued. A lawyer may ta|_(e such action on behalf of the client as Is lmplledly authorized to carry out the 
representation. A lawyer shall abide by a client's decision whether to settle a matter. In a criminal case, the lawyer 
shall abide by the client's d ‘ ‘ 

, after consultation with the lawyer, as to a plea to be entered, whether to waive 
jury trial and whether the client will testify. 

(b) A lawyer's repraentation of a client, including representation by appointment, does not constitute an 
endorsement of the cIie_nt's political, economic, social or moral views or activities. 

(c) A lawyer may limit the scope of the representation If the limitation is reasonable under the circumstan c and the 
client gives informed consent. 

(d) A lawyer shall not counsel a client to engage, or assist a client, in conduct that the lawyer knows is crlmlnal or 
fraudulent, but a lawyer may discuss the legal consequenc of any proposed course of conduct with a client and 
may counsel or assist a client to make a good faith effort to determine the validity, scope, meaning or ,_, cation of 
the law. 

ABA MODEL RULES OF PROFESSIONAL CONDUCT 
;CLIENT-LAWYER RELATIONSHIP 
Copirlght 2013 American Bar Assodatlon 
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I am a Court Specialist of the State Bar Court of California. I am over the age of eighteen and 
not a party to the within proceeding. Pursuant to standard court practice, in the City and County 
of Los Angeles, on January 17, 2019, I deposited a true copy of the following document(s): 
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Service at Los Angeles, California, addressed as follows: 

CAROLE J OANN BUCKNER 
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525 B ST 
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